
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The October 21, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Board of Trustees was called to order 6 
by Village President Dave Lienau at 6:05 P.M.  7 
 8 
Present:  Village President Dave Lienau and Trustees Scott Baker, Shane Solomon, Pat Duffy, 9 
Nora Zacek, and Kathy Enquist.    10 
 11 
Excused:  John Clove 12 
 13 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Finance Director Juliana Neuman, Utility 14 
Superintendent Steve Jacobson and Janal Suppanz, Administrative Assistant. 15 
 16 
Others:   Laddie Chapman, Paige Funkhouser, Jack Moneypenny, Drew Bickford, Jessica 17 
Grasse, Heidi Hitzeman, Ron Kane, Larry Gajda, Greg Casperson, Kip Pagel, Denise Bhirdo, 18 
Rodney Hedeen and one other individual. 19 
 20 
Approval of minutes as published: 21 
As to the minutes for the August 19, 2014 meeting of the Village Board: 22 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the August 19, 2014 23 
meeting of the Village Board be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 24 
 25 
As to the minutes for the September 16, 2014 meeting of the Village Board: 26 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the September 16, 27 
2014 meeting of the Village Board be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 28 
 29 
Comments and Correspondence 30 
Lienau asked if anyone wished to address a non-agenda item. No one responded. He also 31 
noted that the following pieces of correspondence were included in the meeting packets: 32 

   A thank you letter from Adrienne Marks, the Coordinator of the Community Garden, for 33 
all the support Village staff members gave her and the other gardeners this year. 34 

 A donation request from Bill Chaudoir, the Executive Director of the Door County 35 
Economic Development Corporation. 36 

 37 
New Village Board Business 38 
Item No. 1. Presentation by Jack Moneypenny of the Door County Visitor Bureau on strategic 39 
community partnership funding and DCVB operations: 40 
The Door County Visitor Bureau, (DCVB), is the official tourism marketing organization for 41 
Door County, and its mission is to foster long-term economic growth and stability in accord 42 
with sustainable tourism practices. Jack Moneypenny, the President/CEO of the DCVB 43 
explained that he and the other employees at the DCVB are charged with doing marketing 44 
which will bring people to Door County. They believe the local business associations are 45 
responsibile for planning activities and doing marketing which will bring people to their 46 
respective communities. The Visitor Bureau’s budget for 2014 is $3.25 million. The DCVB is 47 
charged with seeing that room tax revenues are spent in accord with the Wisconsin Statutes. A 48 
portion of those revenues are distributed to the communities where room tax is collected. From 49 

2



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-2- 

2009 to 2013 $147,441.82 in Community Partnership funds has been paid to the Sister Bay 1 
Advancement Association. Moneypenny presented a handout which contained statistics 2 
pertaining to room tax collection, the Strategic Community Partnership and visitor spending 3 
and explained how the Strategic Community Partnership is administered. The DCVB’s key 4 
initiatives for 2014 were the “Cherry Campaign”, expanded television buys into Madison, 5 
Milwaukee, Northern Illinois, Chicago and the Fox Cities and creation of “Wind Down and 6 
“Power Up” stations in Milwaukee and Madison.  7 
 8 
The Board members thanked Moneypenny for taking the time to attend this meeting, and 9 
Moneypenny urged them to contact him any time they have questions regarding the DCVB’s 10 
operations or room tax collections. 11 
 12 
Item No. 7. Presentation by the SBAA regarding 2014 activities; Discussion on the setting of 13 
goals and expections for the SBAA for 2015, and consider a motion for action, if appropriate: 14 
Paige Funkhouser, the SBAA Coordinator, made a Power Point presentation regarding the SBAA 15 
and its goals and objectives. In 2007 Door County adopted a countywide room tax, and in 16 
accord with prescribed procedures Community Partnership funds are paid to the SBAA on a 17 
monthly basis. In 2010 Village officials decided to increase the SBAA’s annual support to 18 
$50,000. At that time Funkhouser was hired. Her job duties are varied and she relies heavily on 19 
volunteers. In 2014 the SBAA sponsored nine festivals and special events. The largest of those 20 
events is Fall Fest. The 69th annual Fall Fest was a success in spite of some fairly nasty weather. 21 
It appears that at least $100,000 was withdrawn from ATM’s which were situated throughout 22 
the Village during Fall Fest, so there definitely was a positive impact on the businesses in and 23 
around Sister Bay. This year commemorative t-shirts, sweatshirts, caps and mugs were sold in 24 
an attempt to generate more revenues for the SBAA and offset festival costs.  The Performance 25 
Pavilion has been a wonderful addition to the Village, and Funkhouser is certain it will get a lot 26 
use. It would be nice to bring some “big name” performers to the Village, but that could 27 
become quite costly. Funkhouser has reached out to the management of the Door County 28 
Auditorium about partnering on events which could be conducted in the pavilion and will 29 
provide more information to Village officials as soon as it becomes available. At this time the 30 
SBAA is considering alternating Movies In The Park with Concerts in the Park. Funkhouser 31 
thanked the Village for all its support throughout the years and respectfully requested that 32 
support in the amount of $50,000 again be authorized for 2015. Business owners will be facing 33 
challenging times in the next few years as there will be road construction going on and detours 34 
will be in place, and they will need all the help they can get. 35 
 36 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board authorizes funding 37 
of $50,000 for the Sister Bay Advancement Association in 2015. Motion carried – All ayes. 38 
 39 
During discussion Duffy noted that there appears to be a difference of opinion as to what the 40 
Village and SBAA’s roles actually are, and suggested that a formal list of goals and objectives as 41 
well as identified issues and potential solutions to them be created. It was the consensus that 42 
this will be a good idea. The suggestion was made that a committee consisting of 43 
representatives from both organizations be created to formulate that list, and Lienau indicated 44 
that he will take the matter under advisement.    45 
 46 
A vote was taken on Lienau and Solomon’s motion and it carried – All ayes.    47 
 48 
 49 
 50 

3



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-3- 

Item No. 3. Consider a motion to accept a proposal from Vandewalle and Associates for 1 
economic development and amend the CIP for 2014 to fund that proposal: 2 
The Finance Committee has recommended that $15,000 be allocated into the CIP for 2015 for 3 
economic development. An economic development proposal which was received from 4 
VandeWalle & Associates was included in the meeting packets. At this time Jackson is asking 5 
that the money be used to create an incubator space on the Braun property and prepare sell 6 
sheets for the properties which have been identified as having development potential. The two 7 
affected property owners have indicated that they would be willing to contribute $2,000 each 8 
toward the cost of the sell sheets. The Braun property would be utilized for a seasonal market of 9 
a semi-permanent nature, thereby fostering the next generation of merchants in Sister Bay. The 10 
funding would be under the purview of the Economic Development Committee and would 11 
initially be handled as a special revenue fund.   12 
   13 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village will not proceed any further 14 
with the proposal from Vandewalle & Associates which was included in the meeting packets, 15 
but will leave $15,000 in the 2015 Economic Development CIP. In 2014 no more than $4,000 16 
in expenses related to creation of sell sheets for the properties which have been identified in the 17 
Downtown Redevelopment Plan as having development potential shall be incurred, but those 18 
funds shall not be withdrawn from the Economic Development CIP until January of 2015. The 19 
Board is expecting that the affected property owners will repay the Village for the cost of the sell 20 
sheets if and when the previously mentioned properties do sell.  Motion carried – All ayes.  21 
 22 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to amend the contract with JJR, adding additional services for 23 
contract administration/site inspections of the Sister Bay Beach Expansion Project: 24 
The Village plans to construct a 650’ beach expansion along Waterfront Park. This project is 25 
complex and rather unique in nature, incorporating water, wastewater, stromwater and 26 
landscape engineering principles into its design. Relatively simple sounding items such as sand 27 
placement may become enormously expensive for the Village in future years if not done 28 
correctly the first time. JJR is the engineering firm that designed the beach expansion project, 29 
and utilizing them for site and contract administration would be a sound investment of public 30 
funds to ensure that corners are not cut by contractors and specs are met. A draft of a contract 31 
amendment document stating that up to four additional site visits are authorized was included 32 
in the meeting packets and the Board members jointly reviewed it. The estimated cost of JJR’s 33 
additional services is $10,880. 34 
 35 
Duffy voiced concerns about spending the additional money when JJR is already very familiar 36 
with the project and the components of it.   37 
 38 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the Village Board approves a contract 39 
amendment with Smithgroup JJR for an amount not to exceed $10,880. Motion carried with 40 
Duffy abstaining. 41 
 42 
Item No. 5. Consider a motion to award a contract, contingent upon receipt of grant funding, 43 
to Death’s Door Marine for the Sister Bay Beach Expansion Project in the amount of 44 
$1,150,535, including Alternates #1 and #2 for surveying and stone testing; and consider a 45 
motion to authorize 5% overruns in change orders totaling $57,526: 46 
For a number of years the Village has planned for an expansion of the Sister Bay Beach, and the 47 
project was let for bids on two occasions. Because of cost considerations last year’s bids were 48 
rejected, but this year’s bids were more favorable, with Death’s Door Marine placing the low 49 
bid of $1,130,035 plus alternate charges of $20,500. The Village has received a Letter of Intent 50 

4



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-4- 

from the DNR to fund $489,285 in grant funds, and the recommendation has been made that 1 
Death’s Door’s bid be accepted. Staff members are requesting that the Board pre-authorize a 2 
5% overrun in the amount of $57,526 in order to handle unexpected expenses which may arise 3 
during the construction phase.  4 
  5 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that the Village Board accepts the bid of 6 
Death’s Door Marine in the amount of $1,130,035 for the construction of the Sister Bay Beach 7 
Expansion Project, plus $20,500 in alternates for surveying and stone testing, and authorizes the 8 
execution of a contract for $1,150,535, contingent upon formal approval of grant funding. The 9 
Board also authorizes 5% overruns in change orders totaling $57,526. Motion carried – All 10 
ayes. 11 
 12 
Concerns were voiced about the condition of the crib dock by the Boathouse, and it was 13 
the consensus that this issue shall be referred to the Marina Committee. It was also the 14 
consensus that the Village Administrator shall see that water depth levels are recorded for 15 
the area in front of the Yacht Club at Sister Bay. 16 
 17 
Item No. 9. Update on debt refinancing/advanced refunding of December, 2015 bond series; 18 
Consider a motion to direct staff to take action if necessary: 19 
Traditional municipal financing arrangements required that municipal entities sought General 20 
Obligation or Revenue Bonds through financial advisors and bond council. This arrangement is 21 
no longer valid as market interest rates are substantially lower from retail banks. Back in 2005 22 
the Village authorized $15,000,000 in debt in order to receive favorable status before State 23 
level legislative changes took effect. The Village’s total obligations from all sources is 24 
$22,547,863, with $15,560,000 in principal and $6,987,863 in interest being due in 2031. The 25 
bond call dates will come up in December of 2015. By calling the bonds and refinancing with 26 
Baylake Bank at an interest rate of roughly 2% the Village will save approximately $180,000 in 27 
interest over the course of five years. The Finance Committee has recommended that this occur. 28 
  29 
It was the consensus that when applicable Jackson shall investigate the financing options which 30 
are available and present his findings to the Finance Committee. 31 
 32 
At 7:59 P.M. a brief recess was taken and the Board reconvened at 8:06 P.M. 33 
 34 
Item No. 2. Consider a motion to amend the Village Board and Committee/Commission 35 
Bylaws: 36 
The Parks Committee and Lienau are recommending that an Ad Hoc Marketing Committee, 37 
consisting of two Trustees, one SBAA representative and one citizen be created. The members 38 
of that committee will be charged with preparing a marketing plan to attract visitors to the 39 
Village. They will also be asked to plan for rebranding of the Village and plan activities and 40 
events which will attract visitors to the Village. 41 
 42 
Drafts of revised versions of the Village Board and Committee/Commission Bylaws which 43 
enable a Marketing Committee were included in the meeting packets and the Board members 44 
jointly reviewed those documents.  45 
 46 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 47 
recommendation of the Parks Committee and President Lienau and approves the revised 48 
versions of the Village Board and Committee/Commission Bylaws which were reviewed at this 49 
meeting as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 50 

5



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-5- 

A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Enquist that the Village’s Committee/Commission 1 
Bylaws shall be revised in such fashion that they state that all members of Village Boards, 2 
Commissions and Committees shall receive the standard meeting attendance rate of pay for 3 
their services. Motion carried – All ayes.  4 
 5 
Item No. 11.  Consider a motion to confirm and appoint President Lienau’s nomination of 6 
qualified citizens to fill vacancies on committees, commissions and Boards in the Village: 7 
Lienau is recommending that Zacek be appointed to serve as the Village Liaison on the SBAA 8 
Board of Directors and is also recommending that Solomon and Enquist as well as Paige 9 
Funkhouser be appointed to the Ad Hoc Marketing Committee. (Solomon and Enquist will be 10 
the designated Trustees, Funkhouser will be the SBAA representative, and a yet to be 11 
determined citizen will still have to be appointed. The Chairperson of the Marketing Committee 12 
shall be Solomon.)   13 
 14 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Duffy that Shane Solomon, Kathy Enquist, and 15 
Paige Funkhouser shall be appointed to the Ad Hoc Marketing Committee, and Nora Zacek 16 
shall be appointed to serve as the Village Liaison on the SBAA Board of Directors. Solomon shall 17 
serve as the Chair of the Marketing Committee. Motion carried – All ayes  18 
 19 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to act on the recommendation of the Parks Committee to 20 
adopt a Parks Pass Policy for Sister Bay residents and impose use fees for non-residents at the 21 
Sports Complex/TKH Ice Rink: 22 
The suggestion has been made that seasonal “Parks Passes” be issued to Village residents as 23 
well as property and business owners, but that non-residents and non-property owners be 24 
charged fees to use the TKH Ice Rink and other Sports Complex appurtenances. An example of 25 
a “Parks Pass” and a proposed fee schedule was included in the meeting packets, and the 26 
Board members jointly reviewed that document. The Parks Committee has recommended that 27 
all children 10 years of age and under be admitted to the Sports Complex free of charge, but 28 
that non-residents and non-property owners who are over that age be charged the following 29 
fees: 30 

Individual Use Fee - $3.00 Per Day 31 
“Car Load”/Family Fee - $6.00 Per Day 32 

Organized League Member Non-Resident Seasonal Pass Fee - $10.00 33 
Family/”Car Load” Season Pass - $25.00 34 

 35 
Enquist noted that she likes the Dog Park and would like to see it grow, but believes fees should 36 
be charged for the use of that facility. She also believes any and all dog owners who use the 37 
Dog Park should be required to provide proof that their dog(s) has/have been vaccinated. The 38 
Board members indicated that they do not believe it would be appropriate to charge fees for the 39 
use of the Dog Park, but would like to see the possibility of placing a donation canister out 40 
there considered. The vaccination issue will be referred to the Parks Committee for further 41 
consideration. 42 
 43 
It was the consensus that only the TKH Ice Rink and Sports Complex should be mentioned on 44 
the back of the Parks Pass.  45 
 46 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that the Village Board accepts the 47 
recommendation of the Parks Committee and adopts a Parks Pass system. The proposed fee 48 
schedule for non-residents and non-property owners is approved as presented, and the pass is 49 
approved as amended. Motion carried – All ayes. 50 

6



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-6- 

Item No. 8. Preliminary presentation of the 2015 budget and discussion thereof; Consider a 1 
motion to hold a public hearing on November 18, 2014 for public comment and adoption of 2 
that budget: 3 
A draft of the proposed 2015 budget for the Village of Sister Bay was included in the meeting 4 
packets and the Board members jointly reviewed that document. A number of standing and ad 5 
hoc committees as well as the Finance Committee have recommended that a public hearing be 6 
conducted regarding the draft budget.  7 
 8 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Zacek that the Village Board accepts the 9 
recommendations of a number of standing and ad hoc committees as well as the Finance 10 
Committee and authorizes staff to schedule a public hearing regarding the proposed Village of 11 
Sister Bay Budget for 2015. That hearing shall be conducted in the Large Meeting Room at the 12 
Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Department at 6:00 P.M. on November 18, 2014. Motion carried 13 
– All ayes. 14 
 15 
Item No. 10. Consider a motion to adopt Resolution No. 298, authorizing the sale of Parcel 16 
No. 181-21-0501A located at 2362 Mill Road to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 17 
as well as Al and Terry Gokey: 18 
Traditional municipal management places a great deal of responsibility with the 19 
Administrator/Manager. Asset disposal/development is traditionally one of those tasks. A draft of 20 
Resolution No. 298, which authorizes the sale of a portion of Village of Sister Bay Parcel No. 21 
181-21-0501A to the Wisconsin Department of Transportation and authorizes the sale of the 22 
remaining portion of that parcel to Al and Tara Gokey was included in the meeting packets.  23 
 24 
Several of the Board members indicated that they believe the possibility of selling the property 25 
to the Gokeys should be referred to the Finance Committee for review and consideration. They 26 
also suggested that the property be advertised as being for sale for the best offer, and indicated 27 
that they would like to see two separate Resolutions related to the sale of the previously 28 
mentioned property created. It was the consensus that this agenda item shall be tabled until the 29 
November meeting of the Village Board. 30 
 31 
Item No. 12. Report on County activities from the County Supervisor, Dave Lienau: 32 
Lienau gave the following oral report: 33 

    The County’s Finance Committee has forwarded the 2015 Budget to the County Board. 34 

   The Administrative Committee is continuing to work on the County’s Employee 35 
Compensation Plan. 36 

 37 
Item No. 13. Review of the financial statements and consideration of a motion to approve the 38 
monthly bills: 39 
Payment Approval Reports for the period September 18, 2014 through October 21, 2014 were 40 
included in the meeting packets, and the Board members jointly reviewed those documents. 41 
 42 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Solomon that the monthly bills depicted on the 43 
reports which were included in the meeting packets totaling $569,174.11 are all approved. 44 
Motion carried – All ayes. 45 
 46 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by that the quarterly support for the SBAA in the 47 
amount of $12,500 shall be released as soon as possible. Motion carried – All ayes.  48 
 49 

7



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-7- 

Committee Reports: 1 
(1) Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee 2 
The Administrative Committee/Public Relations Committee formulated the previously 3 
mentioned By-Law revisions. 4 
 5 
(2) Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee 6 
The Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Ad Hoc Committee has not met recently.  7 
 8 
(3) Communication and Technology Committee 9 
The Communication and Technology Committee has not met recently.     10 
 11 
(4) Door County Coastal Byways Commission 12 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  13 
 14 
(5) DCEDC  15 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The DCEDC met 16 
on October 13, 2014 and at that meeting a presentation was made regarding future plans for 17 
Horseshoe Bay Farms.   18 
 19 
(6) Economic Development Committee 20 
 The Economic Development Committee has not met recently. 21 
 22 
(7) Finance Committee 23 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.   24 
 25 
(8) Fire Board and Fire District Exploratory Committee: 26 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  27 
 28 
The Fire District Exploratory Committee is continuing to meet. Discussions are still taking place 29 
regarding the makeup of the Board of Directors.  30 
 31 
(9) Historical Society 32 
The Historical Society Board of Directors met recently but the minutes have not been received 33 
yet. Unfortunately it does not appear that the Historical Society will be able to raise the 34 
necessary funds for the purchase and/or moving of the Old School. The Corner of the Past has 35 
been closed for the season. 36 
 37 
(10) Library Commission 38 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The next meeting 39 
of the Commission is scheduled for November 12, 2014.   40 
 41 
(11) Marina Committee and Marina Fest Committee: 42 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The Marina is 43 
now closed for the season. 44 
 45 
The Marina Fest Wrap-Up Meeting was conducted last night. Many favorable and positive 46 
comments were heard about this year’s Marina Fest.   47 
 48 
(12) Parks 49 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 50 

8



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

 

-8- 

(13) Personnel Committee 1 
The Personnel Committee has not met recently.  2 
 3 
(14) Plan Commission 4 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.  5 
 6 
(15) SBAA 7 
The SBAA Board of Directors met on Thursday, October 2nd, but those minutes have not been 8 
completed yet.  9 
 10 
(16) Teen Center 11 
The Teen Center Board has not met recently. 12 
 13 
(17) Tourism Zone Commission 14 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. The question has 15 
arisen as to whether the room tax laws apply to marinas and campgrounds, and that issue has 16 
been referred to the Commission’s attorney.  17 
 18 
(18) Utilities – Water, Sewer, and Storm Sewer Committees 19 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets. 20 
 21 
Duffy noted that the Utilities Superintendent has expressed interest in having some Village 22 
owned properties designated as potential locations for spreading of sludge. The Utilities 23 
Committee was asked to make a formal recommendation regarding this issue. 24 
 25 
(19) Administration/Compensation Oversight 26 
No action based on the minutes which were included in the meeting packets.   27 
 28 
(20) Waterfront Oversight 29 
The Waterfront Oversight Committee has not met recently. 30 
 31 
12. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a committee, 32 
official or employee: 33 
It was the consensus that: 34 

   The possibility of installing a donation canister out at the Dog Park as well as the 35 
possibility of initiating a policy that all dog owners who use the Dog Park must 36 
provide proof of vaccinations to the personnel in the Administration Office shall be 37 
referred to the Parks Committee. 38 

   The possibility of selling the portion of Parcel No. 181-21-0501 the Gokeys have 39 
expressed interest in shall be referred to the Finance Committee. 40 

   Two separate draft Resolutions shall be prepared regarding the sale of Parcel No. 41 
181-21-0501A, and those documents shall be addressed at the November Village 42 
Board Meeting. 43 

   The Utilities Committee shall be asked to make a recommendation regarding 44 
changing the zoning classification for an area identified in the Sludge Study from 45 
Parkland to Institutional.  46 

   The Marina Committee shall be asked to discuss the condition of the crib dock by 47 
the Boathouse. 48 
 49 

9



Minutes for the October 21, 2014 Meeting of the Village Board 

I:\2014 Agendas\Board\2014\2014_10\102114 Village Board Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 08/19/2014; Last Printed: 11/14/2014 10:49 AM 

-9- 

   The Village Administrator shall see that water depth levels are recorded for the area 1 
in front of the Yacht Club at Sister Bay. 2 

   3 
Adjournment: 4 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker to adjourn the meeting of the Board of 5 
Trustees at 9:19 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes, 6 
 7 
Respectfully submitted,  8 

 9 
Janal Suppanz,  10 
Administrative Assistant11 

12 

10



The Village Budget has been examined and recommended by the various oversight 
committees that oversee the WWTP, Utilities, Marina, TKH, Administration, General Fund, Parks, Debt 
Service, and TIF budgets.  There is a slight increase in levy due largely to net new construction, and an 
increase in water fees per our biannual rate setting process. 
 
A rate determination has not come back for the Water Utility at this time.  
   

11

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution 302-111814 
 

Adopting the 2015 Budget and Capital Improvement Program 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee has reviewed the financial needs of 
the Village and recommends the adoption of the 2015 Annual Budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed budget including detailed estimates of the revenues and expenses for 
the current fiscal year and for the ensuing fiscal year, in the format as is required by statutes, 
was available for public inspection and a summary of such budget was duly published in a 
newspaper of general circulation and a public hearing was held Tuesday, November 18, 2014 
at the Sister Bay Fire Station at 6:00 p.m. where all residents and taxpayers were afforded an 
opportunity to be heard on all matters pertaining to the proposed budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Village Board of the Village of Sister Bay does 
hereby adopt the budget hereinafter set out in detail and hereby appropriates the sums of 
money or so much thereof as may be needed and deemed necessary to defray all expenses 
and liabilities for municipal purposes of the fiscal year, commencing the 1st day of January 
2015 and ending the 31st day of December 2015. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the various interfund loans and repayment schedules are 
approved as specified in the budget document. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the budget be published on the Village web site and 
made available for the public as soon as practicable. 
 
Introduced at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay conducted 
on the 18th day of November 2014. 
 
Passed and adopted this ___ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
         _____________________________________ 
         Dave Lienau, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________  VOTE: Ayes ______   Noes _____ 
Christy Sully, Village Clerk WCPC/MMC 
 

12



 
 
   

13

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution Authorizing Sale of Property  
No 298-111814 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay, by its Board of Trustees, has entered into discussions for an 

agreement for the sale of property approximately .72 acres on the East portion of the lot, known as the old Helm’s 
Cottage Lot on the South Side of Mill Rd, Parcel of 181-21-0501A, 2362 Mill Rd to the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation for 6(f) conversion.  The DOT shall be responsible for surveying of the land and creation of a 
certified survey map for consideration by the Village of Sister Bay’s Plan Commission and Village Board for 
Adoption.  The Village Administrator shall have authority to verify the correctness of the map before adoption 
by the Village’s legislative bodies; 

 
AND WHEREAS the Village of Sister Bay by its Board of Trustees has agreed to sell the following 

described property, upon the terms and conditions which are satisfactory to the Village of Sister Bay, based upon 
the best negotiated terms that the Village Administrator can obtain with Finance Committee Approval; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay as 

follows: 

 

  
1.   The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described property to the Wisconsin 

Department of Transportation, upon payment of a sum of approximately $383,000, or the best negotiated deal which the 
Village Administrator can obtain  with Finance Committee approval upon the following property: 

 
Parcel No. 181-21-0501A: 

 
Approximately .72 acres for the purpose of 6(f) conversion by the Wisconsin Department of Transportation, 
the Eastern Portion of that same lot located at 2362 Mill Rd.   The DOT will request rezoning of the property 
to P-1, and prepare deed restrictions for examination by the Village Attorney suitable for 6(f) conversion.  
DOT will also, as a condition of this sale, work with the Wisconsin DNR and Village to resolve any 
outstanding Stewardship/6(f) deed restrictions on Waterfront Park Land.  

 
2.  The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay authorizes the President and Clerk of the 

Village of Sister Bay to execute conveyance documents to complete such transaction and to further execute 
any extensions, amendments, or modifications  in the sale documents which are not inconsistent with this 
Resolution. 

 

 

14



15



 
 
   

16

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution Authorizing Sale of Property  
No 299-111814 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay, by its Board of Trustees, has entered into 

discussions for an agreement for the sale of property approximately .23 acres on the west portion 

of the lot, known as the old Helm’s Cottage Lot on the South Side of Mill Rd, Parcel of 181-21-

0501A, 2362 Mill Rd to Al and Tara Gokey or their designated entity; and 

AND WHEREAS the Village of Sister Bay by its Board of Trustees has agreed to sell the 
following described property, upon the terms and conditions which are satisfactory to the 
Village of Sister Bay, based upon the best negotiated terms that the Village Administrator can 
obtain with Finance Committee Approval; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Sister Bay as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described 

property, zoned B-2, to Al and Tara Gokey or their designee (“Gokey”) upon payment by 
Gokey of a negotiated sum and dedicated improvements property, the best of which the Village 
Administrator can obtain upon the following property: 

 
Parcel No. 181-21-0501A: 

 
Approximately .23 acres on the West side of the lot, south of Mill Rd. Commonly referred 
to as the old helm’s cottage property, Pursuant to the attached approximate map. 

 
2.  The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay authorizes the President 

and Clerk of the Village of Sister Bay to execute conveyance documents to complete such 
transaction and to further execute any extensions, amendments, or modifications  in the 
sale documents which are not inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 

 
 
 

17



18



 Change in Health Care/Dental/Vision Cost Sharing from 90% of Premium to 85% of Premium 
contributed by the Village; current and future employees impacted. 

 Reduction in PTO days for new full time hires. 
 Reduction of Wages for new hires, bringing wages into line with a 5 County regional area. 

 
   

19

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY 
PROPOSED PTO POLICY 

TO BE EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2015 
 

Paid Time Off (PTO) is available to all full time employees (defined as working more 
than 32 hours per week on a regularly scheduled basis for the calendar year) and may 
be used for vacation, sick leave, personal time, emergency or bereavement leave or for 
time off to care for dependents. 
 
In addition, 7 paid holidays will be observed by the Village: New Year’s Day, Memorial 
Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, the day after Thanksgiving and 
Christmas Day. 
 
 PTO must be scheduled in advance in increments of at least two hours and approved 
by the department head except for cases of illness or emergency.  Acceptance of PTO 
by the department head will be based on seniority, staffing needs and workload. 
 
At the discretion of the Village Administrator, a doctor’s note will be required for 
illnesses over 3 days. Short-Term Disability must be applied for when illness is 
expected to last more than seven days.  PTO may be used to fund the elimination 
period (or as allowed by the Village-paid Short Term Disability policy). 
 
Employees hired or in a newly eligible full-time status on or after January 1, 2015 will be 
covered under this new policy.  PTO includes vacation, sick leave, personal time, 
emergency or bereavement leave, and time off to care for dependents. Effective 
January 1, 2015, PTO is accrued according to the following schedule: 
 

                Maximum   
 PTO Days   Completed Service      Accumulation Cap 

0 – 4.99 Years 20 days/ hours per pay period     30 Days  
 5 – 14.99 Years 26 days/ hours per pay period     36 Days 
 15+ Years  31 days/ hours per pay period   41 Days  
 
PTO will accrue and be available on a per pay period basis up to the Maximum 
Accumulation Cap. No accrual above the Maximum Accumulation Cap will be 
compensable.  Any PTO accrued above the Maximum Accumulation Cap will be put into 
a reserve account.  This PTO will have no cash value and will not be paid out upon 
termination.  Accrual rates will change on an employees’ 5th and 15th year anniversaries. 
 
No transfer of PTO by or between employees is allowed. 
 
At the end of each calendar year, any earned but unused compensation time {“Comp 
Time”} will be paid out in cash at the hourly rate in which it was earned. 
 
Upon termination, 10 days of PTO will be deducted in lieu of two weeks’ notice if said 
notice is not given. Any balance earned but unused up to the Maximum Accumulation 
Cap will be paid out in cash upon termination or retirement. 
 

20



TRANSITION FOR PERSONNEL EMPLOYED AND IN FULL-TIME STATUS BEFORE 
JANUARY 1, 2015: 

 
Vacation accrued during 2014 will be available effective January 1, 2015.   

 
PTO for personnel employed in full-time status prior to January 1, 2015 will accrue 
according to the following schedule and will include vacation, sick leave, personal time, 
emergency or bereavement leave, and time off to care for dependents: 
 

         Maximum
 Completed Service  PTO Days       Accumulation Cap 

1 – 7.99 Yrs  24 days/ hours per pay period     34 Days 
 8 – 14.99 Years 29 days/ hours per pay period     39 Days 
 15 – 21.99 Years 34 days/ hours per pay period     44 Days 
 
 22+ Years*  39 days/ hours per pay period     49 Days  
 
Beginning January 1, 2015, PTO will accrue and be available on a per pay period basis 
up to the Maximum Accumulation Cap.  The Maximum Accumulation Cap will include 
vacation days earned in 2014 and available in 2015. No accrual above the Maximum 
Accumulation Cap will be compensable.  Any PTO accrued in excess of the Maximum 
Accumulation Cap will be put into a reserve account.  This PTO will have no cash value 
and will not be paid out upon termination.  Accrual rates will change on employees’ 1st, 
8th, and 15th year anniversaries. 
 
*This accrual amount and Maximum Accumulation Cap will apply only to those 
employees who have completed 22 years of service before January 1, 2015.  All other 
employees who have less than 22 years of service before January 1, 2015 will have a 
maximum of 34 days PTO and 44 days Maximum Accumulation Cap.  
 
Compensation Time balances existing at 12/31/14 must be used or paid out within two 
years (by December 31, 2016) at the pay rate in effect in December of 2014. 

 
Sick leave balances will be put into an account to be used to fund the Short-Term 
Disability elimination period (or as allowed by the Village-paid Short-Term Disability 
policy) or for up to 5 days of emergency leave.  Upon termination, up to 30 days of 
remaining sick leave may be converted to cash at 50% of the hourly rate in effect in 
December 2014 by full-time employees who have completed 20 or more years of 
service. 
 
All other provisions of the new policy effective January 1, 2015 will apply to employees 
active and in full-time status before January 1, 2015. 

21



VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY

Compensation ranges

Position Range

Low Middle High
Administration

Village Administrator 50K 60K 70K

Finance Director 40K 50K 60K

Administrative Assistant 30K 40K 50K

Clerk/Treasurer 14.00hr. 16.00/hr. 18.02/hr.

Parks

Manager 37,500 48,750 60,000

Maintenance 11.50/hr. 14.50/hr. 17.30/hr.

Seasonal Worker 7.25/hr. 12.00/hr.

Recreation Coordinator 11.00/hr. 12.50/hr. 14.00/hr.

Marina

Manager (annualized) 36,000 42,000 48,000

Assistant Manager 14.00/hr 16.50/hr. 19.00/hr

Dockmaster 10.00/hr. 11.50/hr 13.00/hr

Utilities

Clerk 15.00/hr. 18.50/hr. 22.00/hr.

Manager 41,600 52,500 63,400

Assistant Manager 17.58/hr. 21.98/hr. 26.38/hr.

Operator 16.00/hr 20.00/hr. 24.00/hr

22



Marina/Recreation Incentive Plan, revised
All Time High 

Est.
Qualify Goal Meet 5%

Seasonal Fees 339,518.00$  320,000.00$  340,000.00$  1,000.00$  

Transient Fees 125,918.00$  115,000.00$  126,000.00$  550.00$      

reservations subtotal: 465,436.00$  435,000.00$  466,000.00$  1,550.00$  

Launch Fees 15,245.00$    12,000.00$    15,500.00$    175.00$      

Product Sales 6,796.00$       2,000.00$       6,800.00$       240.00$      

Boathouse Rental 20,000.00$    11,000.00$    20,000.00$    450.00$      

Advertising/Spoonsorship x -$                 15,000.00$    750.00$      

Total: 507,477.00$  460,000.00$  523,300.00$  3,165.00$  

(Ad/Sponsorship sales apply to all Village/Marina Events)

(Qualify and Goal for Seasonal/Transient fees apply to the subtotal, not each category i.e. the sum of both) 

23



 
 
   

24

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


ORDINANCE NO. 231-111814 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING AND RECREATING SECTION 66.0323 OF THE 

VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY CODE; CALCULATIONS IN THE B-3 DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS,  THE VILLAGE OF SISTER BAY SEEKS TO MITIGATE LOSS OF FUTURE DEVELOPMENT IN 

THE DOWNTOWN AREA; AND 
 
WHEREAS, THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDED AN AMENDMENT TO SECTION 66.0323, 
AND; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE ORDAINED THAT: SECTION 66.0323 OF THE SISTER BAY CODE OF 

ORDINANCES IS HEREBY AMENDED AND RECREATED AS ATTACHED. 
 

 
Section 1 – Other Conflicts 
All other Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 2 – Effective Date 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and publication accord-
ing to law. 
 
Section 3 – Severability 
If a Court of competent jurisdiction adjudges any section, clause, provision or portion of this Ordi-
nance unconstitutional or invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 
 
Village of Sister Bay      Attest: 
 
By: ___________________________________  ____________________________ 
 David W. Lienau, President    Christine M. Sully, Clerk WCPC, MMC 
 
         Date Introduced: November 18, 2014 
         Date Adopted: ________________ 
         Publication Date: ________________ 

25



26



 
   

27

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution No. 300-111814,  
Authorizing $400,000 in new debt for financing of 

the Beach Project. 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee recommended at it’s March 31, 

2014 meeting that borrowing be engaged in for any uncapitalized balance of the Sister Bay Beach 

Expansion Project; and, 

WHEREAS, the Village Board authorized through motion at its April 14, 2014 meeting, a 

borrowing in the anticipated amount of $600,000 to complete the uncapitalized balance of the 

Sister Bay Beach Expansion project; and, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Sister Bay as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay authorizes borrowing in the sum of $400,000 from Bay 

Lake Bank at 2.09% interest with payments according to the attached Exhibit A Resolution. 

 

 
 
 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



 
 
   

36

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution Authorizing Exchange of Property  
No 301-111814 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay, by its Board of Trustees, has entered into discussions for an 

agreement for the swap of property approximately 1.87 acres on the South portion of the lot, known as the 

old ball field Lot on Jungworth Ct, Parcel of 181-0005312833D, 2497 Jungworth Ct. Mill Rd to Michael J 

Johnson or his designated entity in exchange for two lots, parcel numbers 181-0006312844x2 and 181-

000632844x3 together totaling approximately 1.87 acres located on Jungworth Ct. ; and 

AND WHEREAS the Village of Sister Bay by its Board of Trustees has agreed to swap the 
preceeding described property, upon the terms and conditions which are satisfactory to the Village of 
Sister Bay and shown in the attached agreement;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay 

as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the previously described property,  

 
A section of Parcel No. 181-0005312833D: 

 
Approximately 1.87 acres on the South side of the lot, south of Jungworth Ct. Commonly referred 
to as the old ball field property, Pursuant to the attached approximate map. 
 
In exchange for: 

 
1.  Michael J. Johnson agrees to convey to the Village two parcels, numbers 181-

0006312844x2 and 181-0006312844x3 totaling approximately 1.87 acres. 
 

 

 
 

37



38



39



40



41



 
 
   

42

http://intranet.sisterbay.com/


Resolution Authorizing Sale of Property  
No 303-111814 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Village of Sister Bay, by its Board of Trustees, has entered into 

discussions for an agreement for the sale of property approximately 3.27 acres of Village owned 

property located at the intersections of Jungworth Ct. and N. Highland Rd., and as depicted on a 

CSM submitted by Brian Piot and; and 

AND WHEREAS the Village of Sister Bay by its Board of Trustees has agreed to sell the 
following described property, upon the terms and conditions outlined in the offer, and for the 
sum of $85,800; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 
Village of Sister Bay as follows: 

 
1.  The Village of Sister Bay hereby resolves to convey the following described 

property, zoned R-2, to Premier Real Estate Management LLC or their assigns upon payment 
by Premier Real Estate Management LLC. of a negotiated of $85,800: 

 
 

2.  The Board of Trustees of the Village of Sister Bay authorizes the President 
and Clerk of the Village of Sister Bay to execute conveyance documents to complete such 
transaction and to further execute any extensions, amendments, or modifications  in the 
sale documents which are not inconsistent with this Resolution. 

 

 
 
 

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



ADMINISTRATION AND COMPENSATION 1 

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 7, 2014 3 
 4 
 5 
The October 7, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Administration and Compensation Oversight 6 
Committee was called to order at 4:50 PM by Chairman Dave Lienau. 7 
 8 
Present: Chairman Lienau, Committee Members Pat Duffy and Joanne Clove, Village Administrator 9 
Zeke Jackson and Finance Director Juliana Neuman 10 
Excused:  Kathy Enquist 11 
Also Present: Village Staff Members Martha Baker, Joe Felhofer, Jim Hirschmiller, Steve Jacobson, 12 
Patrick Johnson, Bob Lang, Robbie LeClair, Steve Mann, Mike Schell, Christy Sully, Janal Suppanz and 13 
Wendy Tatzel.  14 
 15 
Approval of the Agenda 16 
Duffy moved and Clove seconded. Motion carried—all Ayes. 17 
 18 
Comments and Correspondence 19 
Martha Baker said that at the last meeting the employees were promised that they would have a chance  20 
to speak to the Board [i.e. Committee?]. She asked whether that meeting has been arranged. Lienau 21 
replied that they are working on that; a date had been chosen but several employees were not able to 22 
attend. He said that they were trying to find a date when everyone (employees and committee) would be 23 
in attendance.  24 
Janal Suppanz stated that, had she not been on vacation, she would have signed the letter that staff 25 
presented to the committee at the last meeting. 26 
 27 
Discussion Items 28 
 29 

1. Discussion on PTO policy drafts. 30 
2.  31 

The Basic Plan 32 
Using the original proposal prepared by Clove, Jackson read aloud from a revised version he had 33 
prepared. His revisions of the basic plan… 34 

a) maintained the definition of full-time employment as working 32 hours per week or more, 35 
b) removed holidays from the PTO total leaving the current 6 holidays to be treated separately, 36 
c) eliminated the provision that employees must take at least one consecutive 5-day vacation, 37 
d) added “at Administrator’s discretion” to the sentence about a doctor’s note being required, 38 
e) changed non-accrual of PTO days to accrual each pay period from hire date forward, 39 
f) showed increases in the number of PTO days after 5 and 15 years, 40 
g) allowed carryover of no more than ten days into each new year (including comp time), with any 41 

balances paid out in December, 42 
h) established “no transfer” of PTO between employees, 43 
i) stated that up to 10 days (or any balance) of PTO will be paid out at termination, and 44 
j) left Bereavement Leave as a separate benefit not included within PTO.  45 

 46 
There was agreement to seek employee input on whether they would like to add the day after 47 
Thanksgiving as a holiday, or add one or two floating holidays. Neuman pointed out that any added 48 
holidays would increase the amount of doubletime paid out to those who must work on those days. 49 
 50 

67



2 

Establishment of a probationary period prior to access to PTO days was considered; Neuman pointed out 1 
that there is a 30-day waiting period before insurance coverage begins—why not make it the same? 2 
Clove and Duffy expressed strong preference for a 90-day probation period in the context of 3 
employment. Jackson replied that this is unnecessary in an at-will employment state. However, Lienau 4 
agreed with the 90 day probation policy. 5 
 6 
Lengthy discussion about accrual vs. non-accrual of PTO included Clove’s position that PTO days should 7 
be made available on January 1, to be used during the following year, with no “earning” of days at all, so 8 
that when an employee leaves he/she is paid out only for any of that year’s unused PTO days. (If 9 
someone leaves at the end of September, for example, they have not “earned” any additional days.) 10 
[Note: the problem here is that under the current policy, existing employees have already earned 11 
vacation days to be used in 2015. Wisconsin state law defines vacation time as wages and requires that it 12 
be paid out.] 13 
 14 
There were differences of opinion about Bereavement Leave, with Duffy wanting to eliminate this as a 15 
category separate from PTO, while Clove and Lienau felt that this is something that requires special 16 
accommodation. Jackson suggested gathering employee input on this issue. 17 
 18 
Transition for existing employees 19 
Clove led this section by first describing her proposal, which… 20 

a) allows existing employees to carry over a maximum of two weeks of combined unused sick, 21 
vacation, personal, and comp time balances into the first year of PTO, 22 

b) saves remaining sick leave balances to be used to supplement short term and/or long term 23 
disability, 24 

c) allows any remaining comp time balance to be used within the next two years [by 12/31/2017, as 25 
suggested by Jackson] or paid out at the pay rate in effect at implementation of the new plan, and 26 

d) vacation balances will be paid out. 27 
In addition, Jackson proposed that all employees hired as full time (with at least 1820 hours) on or before 28 
1/01/14 shall have 4 PTO days added to their total each year, in order to restore employees with less than 29 
22 years of service to their current level. 30 
 31 
For employees with more than 22 years of service and for those with negotiated terms of employment, 32 
Jackson’s plan would add another 5 days of PTO. 33 
 34 
Jackson’s proposal retains the provision from the current Personnel Handbook that employees hired in 35 
1985 or earlier will be allowed to retain sick days that have accumulated in excess of 30 days, but no 36 
higher than 200 days. No additional sick days will be accumulated by these employees unless the total 37 
accumulated days falls below the 30-day ceiling limit. His proposal also retains the provision that, upon 38 
separation, an employee who has completed 20 years of service may have up to 30 days of sick time 39 
converted to cash at 50% of the hourly rate in effect at the date of implementation. This credit can also be 40 
utilized to pay an employee’s health insurance premiums upon retirement. 41 
 42 
Neuman asked how this provision applies to a PTO plan, since sick days won’t be separately identified 43 
any more. Clove pointed out that this section is dealing with the transition for existing employees who 44 
may have large banks of sick leave, but Neuman explained that the problem is with the sentence stating 45 
that “no additional sick days will be accumulated by these employees unless the total accumulated days 46 
falls below the 30-day ceiling.” Others replied that it won’t matter, since only 30 days of sick leave can 47 
be paid out, under both the current policy and the proposal by Jackson. 48 
 49 
There was consensus that the policy should be presented for input at an employee meeting. 50 
 51 

68



3 

 1 
2. Discussion on existing and Proposed Compensation and Benefits plans. 2 
Jackson reported that information on Health Insurance renewal just arrived today but has not yet been 3 
reviewed. His preliminary opinion is that we should stay with the current policy for another year.  4 
 5 
3. Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes 6 
19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits. 7 
None. 8 
 9 
4.  Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session. 10 
 11 
5.  Consider a motion to take action, if required. 12 
 13 
6. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official or Employee 14 
--poll the employees on adding another holiday, such as the day after Thanksgiving. 15 
--get employee input on Bereavement Leave. 16 
--should a 90-day probationary period be established? 17 
--should PTO accrue each pay period or be made available all at once? 18 
--A decision on Health Insurance for 2015. 19 
-- Discussion on the Personnel Policy Manual. 20 
 21 
After much discussion it was agreed that the employee meeting will be held on October 29

th
 at 2:00 PM. 22 

Adjournment 23 
At 6:25 PM Duffy moved and Clove seconded that the meeting be adjourned. Motion carried. 24 
 25 
Respectfully Submitted, 26 

 27 
Juliana Neuman 28 
Finance Director 29 
 30 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\finance\2014\2014_10/10072014 admin/comp minutes - approved version.docx Created: 5/21/2013 9:14 AM Printed: 31 
11/14/2014 2:44 PM Author: Juliana Neuman Last Saved By: Juliana Neuman 32 

69



ADMINISTRATION AND COMPENSATION 1 

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2014 3 
 4 
 5 
The October 29, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Administration and Compensation Oversight 6 
Committee was called to order at 2:30 PM by Chairman Dave Lienau. 7 
 8 
Present: Chairman Lienau, Committee Members Pat Duffy, Kathy Enquist and Joanne Clove, Village 9 
Administrator Zeke Jackson and Finance Director Juliana Neuman 10 
Also Present: Village Staff Members Joe Felhofer, Jim Hirschmiller, Steve Jacobson, Patrick Johnson, Bob 11 
Lang, Robbie LeClair, Janal Suppanz and Wendy Tatzel. Christy Sully arrived after 4:00 PM. 12 
 13 
Approval of the Agenda 14 
Duffy moved to approve the agenda and Clove seconded. Motion carried—all Ayes. 15 
Comments and Correspondence 16 
None. 17 
 18 
Discussion Items 19 
1. Report on the October 22, 2014 Employee Meeting. 20 
Jackson reported that, in general, employees feel that they are not thanked for their service and that their 21 
‘below par’ facilities are never experienced by elected officials. Steve Mann had recited a long list of 22 
essential and sometimes unpleasant tasks performed by Parks employees of which the trustees are probably 23 
not even aware. In this context, Mann had pointed out that Sister Bay is the only community in northern 24 
Door that leaves its public bathrooms open during festivals.  25 
 26 
Lienau added that the PTO policy had been a primary discussion item at the employee meeting, with 27 
mixed opinions. From employee comments during the meeting and afterwards, Lienau concluded that 28 
some people are OK with the PTO plan, some don’t understand it, some don’t like it, and some don’t want 29 
anything to do with it.  30 
 31 
Jackson added that employee comments from a subsequent meeting have been inserted, with highlighting, 32 
into the re-typed version of the policy provided for the current discussion. 33 
 34 
Lienau then asked the employees in the audience whether anything had been missed in the report given so 35 
far. Pat Johnson stated that the general consensus of the group is that they don’t want the PTO, as [would 36 
be] demonstrated by a show of hands by the employees [if requested].   37 
 38 
2. Discussion on Employer premium contribution levels for Health and Dental Benefits. Consider a 39 
motion to recommend to the Board for action. 40 
Jackson stated that it has been recommended that the Village share of the premiums for both health and 41 
dental insurance be reduced from 90% to 85%. This has been incorporated into the 2015 Salary and Wage 42 
schedule. It will no longer be possible to offer two HRA options; therefore all employees will receive 43 
reimbursements of up to 75% of their deductible costs, rather than having a choice of 50% or 75%. The 44 
current non-ACA group insurance policy, with United Health Care, emerged as the most affordable option. 45 
It is available for at least one more year, with a 12/01/14 renewal date. 46 
 47 
Lienau asked for updated totals on Village HRA and premium costs. Neuman reported that the HRA total 48 
for all employees will be $34,200. The premium amount has increased by 24.1% overall, and two 49 
employees have been added, for a total of $128,152. 50 
 51 

70



2 

Duffy asked about our ability to change brokers next year if we lock in the HRA with Midwest Insurance 1 
Brokerage. Jackson replied that he hopes the current policy will again be renewable. Neuman added that 2 
the contract with Midwest has not yet been signed and suggested that perhaps a conversation could 3 
precede signing. 4 
 5 
Discussion followed about cost comparisons between HRA’s and HSA’s, showing that the Village would 6 
have to pay more into an HSA than into an HRA to achieve an equivalent level of coverage for employees. 7 
 8 
Clove raised the issue of dependent coverage costs and pointed out the inequity inherent in a system that 9 
pays the same percentage of a single employee premium as it does for a couple or a family. She proposed 10 
taking small steps to increase the employee share for spousal and family coverage over time because of the 11 
even greater cost increases that are expected for 2016, if non-ACA coverage ends. Jackson replied that 12 
employees will already experience a considerable increase in 2015 insurance costs because of the 5% 13 
reduction in the Village’s share and the 24.1% increase in premiums. 14 
  15 
Duffy noted that last year the Village imposed a cap of $10,000 per employee on its share of coverage. 16 
Since some employees needed less than $10,000, adjustments were made to assist those whose premiums 17 
had increased the most. This year, the Village’s share has been decreased from 90% to 85% instead. 18 
Lienau spoke in favor of an agreed-upon sum that the Village is able to pay, with the rest up to the 19 
employees.  20 
 21 
Janal Suppanz asked to be recognized and stated that last year two employees moved their spouses to 22 
other plans and received incentives to do so in the form of lower premiums for themselves. Jackson asked 23 
whether these incentives are in the 2015 budget; Neuman replied that this has not yet been worked out. 24 
 25 
Neuman was asked how much more the Village will be paying in 2015 as compared to 2014. By 26 
comparing the 2014 budget amounts to the rates we received for 2015, it was determined that, on a per 27 
employee basis, the Village cost has increased by approximately 16%. 28 
 29 
Motion: Duffy moved that the HRA benefit be set at 75% of deductible level and that the Village share of 30 
premium costs be 85% for both health and dental insurance. Clove seconded the motion and all agreed by 31 
voting Aye. 32 
 33 
3. Discussion on the PTO policy drafts. Consider a motion to recommend to the Board for action. 34 
Jackson introduced the “cleaned-up” version of the policy with highlighted employee comments: 35 

 Call it “Personal Time Off” rather than “Paid Time Off” 36 
 Consider adding the day after Thanksgiving as a holiday 37 
 Correct the disability elimination period from 6 days to seven 38 
 Object to use of the disability policy because of loss of income and WRS accrual. 39 

  40 
Clove reported on her research on the disability policy issues. Using sick leave to supplement the 60% 41 
disability payment would reduce the amount of the benefit. Further, WRS told her that retirement credits 42 
are allowed only for “time worked.” If someone is out on disability, then he/she is not working and cannot 43 
accrue retirement credits. As to ordinary sick leave, Neuman stated that we pay into the retirement fund on 44 
total gross wages, which include sick and vacation leave. The annual gross wage total, which includes 45 
paid leave time, is used by WRS for the year-end account reconciliation. 46 
 47 
Clove added that the advantage of having a disability policy is that it pays for a full 26 weeks, even if the 48 
employee’s position is no longer open. Lienau added that he is familiar with disability policies that allow 49 
employees to begin receiving benefits after using up all of their sick leave. Jackson questioned paying over 50 
$5000/year for a policy that doesn’t allow for use of banks of sick leave, but Clove pointed out that new 51 

71



3 

hires won’t have such banks to draw on. Lienau stated that he would rather find a better disability policy 1 
rather than discontinue having one. Clove suggested asking for a longer waiting period.  2 
 3 
After a five-minute break, Jackson returned to the policy draft and discussion ensued about the fact that 4 
PTO is earned and must be paid out. Jackson had obtained a letter from the Village attorney advising of 5 
this. Existing accruals of vacation are compensatory, but going forward, all PTO would be. 6 
 7 

 Bereavement vs. Emergency Leave: Clove said that it would be simpler to add a couple of days to 8 
the PTO policy, as Duffy had suggested.  9 
 10 

Regarding the transition to PTO for existing full-time employees, Jackson explained that vacation leave is 11 
earned in the current year and has formerly been made available in January of each new year. The 12 
vacation leave earned in 2014 will have to be paid out in December, at a cost of about $43,500. Instead, 13 
Lienau suggested allowing 90 days in the new year to use up that vacation time. Neuman pointed out that 14 
this would result in huge amounts of leave time in each department during 2015. For a senior employee, 15 
this would result in absences of up to 70 days in 2015. Or, as Jackson suggested, employees could be 16 
given the entire year in which to use the earned vacation time plus PTO and would then be paid out on the 17 
balance at the end of 2015. This could also be done on a case-by-case basis. Clove suggested spreading 18 
out the earned vacation over a two-year period. Jackson said this wouldn’t work because the time has 19 
already been earned; Lienau agreed that the transition should be accomplished within one year. After 20 
consideration of various scenarios, there was consensus that payout of earned vacation is the best option.  21 
 22 
To address employee concerns that winter vacations might become impossible under the PTO accrual 23 
policy, Jackson suggested that any extra days added for existing employees should be made available at the 24 
beginning of the year, along with the 10-day carryover of unused leave time. Then, with accrual of more 25 
leave time occurring every pay period, it should be possible to accommodate a winter vacation. 26 
 27 
Duffy objected strenuously to the idea of adding extra days for existing employees, saying that everyone 28 
should be treated the same. He stated that our current plan is excessively generous, while his plan is better 29 
than 75% nationwide. Duffy’s plan eliminates Bereavement/Emergency Leave as a separate category and 30 
adds two days of PTO for each employee with five or more years of service. Jackson asked Duffy if he had 31 
any objections to the policy Neuman had re-typed, other than the Bereavement Leave section and the extra 32 
days for existing employees. Duffy said he did not. Clove asked for clarification of Item #2 on the second 33 
page. Neuman offered the following wording: “Comp time will henceforth be paid out at the hourly rate in 34 
effect at the time it was earned.” Committee members agreed with this change. 35 
 36 
Jackson summarized the impact of the new policy as follows: 37 

 a $43,479 unbudgeted payout of earned vacation time, 38 
 possible mandatory payout of unused PTO, and 39 
 employee perception that there will be a net loss of days. 40 

He then suggested that we recognize that this is not advantageous to the Village or the employees and 41 
consider retaining the current leave time system, with modifications for new hires. Duffy replied that we’re 42 
in this situation because of a “too-generous” policy and said that he is willing to do whatever is necessary 43 
to correct prior mistakes.  44 
 45 
Jackson suggested a compromise based on current employee use of sick leave. He said that, on average, 46 
employees don’t use 15% of their allotted sick time. Duffy rejected this proposal, again stating that his plan 47 
is better than 75% of plans nationwide. He further pointed out that by including sick and bereavement 48 
leave in the PTO total, employees have gained the ability to use all of those days whether or not they are 49 
sick or bereaved – thus, a net gain. Duffy also suggested that he’d be willing to add the day after 50 
Thanksgiving as an additional holiday. 51 
 52 

72



4 

Neuman remarked that there had not yet been a response to Zeke’s point that regardless of the number of 1 
days, moving to a PTO plan will cost the Village more. Duffy replied “One time.” Neuman said “No, it’s 2 
an increase in the number of compensable days going forward.” Lienau agreed, stating that Neuman is 3 
pointing out that if we go down that road it is going to cost more money.  4 
 5 
There was general agreement about adding the day after Thanksgiving. However, Clove said she feels that 6 
Duffy’s plan is still too generous. 7 
 8 
Jackson then made reference to the difficulty he will face with employees who feel shortchanged. Duffy 9 
replied that that this should have been done at least two years ago and that it will only get harder to do. 10 
Duffy: “Let the committee make its recommendation to the Board.” 11 
 12 
Enquist asked why, if the PTO plan is better, the employees are not embracing it. Is this an education 13 
problem or is it really not better for them?  She suggested that perhaps the transition section of the plan 14 
needs more work. Jackson replied that the remaining problem is with the number of days. 15 
 16 
Lienau stated that he doesn’t think we can finish this today. The PTO problem has always been what he 17 
called “grandfathering.” The committee was established to look at all compensation and benefit plans 18 
because there will be major changes in the workforce as well as budgetary constraints in the next few 19 
years. We wanted to look at what we can do to keep existing employees whole, while planning for new 20 
hires at lower cost to the Village overall. That was the original intent; is that what we are accomplishing? 21 
 22 
4. Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes 19.85(1)(c) to 23 
discuss personnel and employee benefits. 24 
Motion by Lienau; second by Duffy.  Roll call: Lienau – Yes   Duffy – Yes   Clove – Yes   Enquist -- Yes 25 
 26 
5.  Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session. 27 
Motion by Lienau; second by Enquist.  Lienau – Yes   Duffy – Yes   Clove – Yes   Enquist -- Yes 28 
 29 
6.  Consider a motion to take action, if required. 30 
No action. 31 
 32 
7. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official or Employee 33 
--Committee to approve the minutes of the 10/02/14 and 10/07/14 meetings 34 
--Neuman to do further research on WRS rules regarding leave time 35 
--Neuman to look for other disability policies 36 
-- Kelly Hendee to contact Lienau about payout of PTO 37 
--Should a 90-day probationary period be established? 38 
-- Discussion on the Personnel Policy Manual. 39 
 40 
The next Admin and Comp meeting will be held on Monday, November 10th at 2:30 PM. 41 
Adjournment 42 
At 5:15 PM Duffy moved and Clove seconded that the meeting be adjourned. Motion carried. 43 
 44 
Respectfully Submitted, 45 

 46 
Juliana Neuman 47 
Finance Director 48 
 49 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\finance\2014\2014_10/10292014 admin/comp minutes - approved version.docx Created: 50 
5/21/2013 9:14 AM Printed: 11/14/2014 2:46 PM Author: Juliana Neuman Last Saved By: Juliana Neuman 51 

73



ADMINISTRATION AND COMPENSATION 1 

COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2014 3 
 4 
 5 
The November 10, 2014 meeting of the Village of Sister Bay Administration and Compensation Oversight 6 
Committee was called to order at 2:30 PM by Chairman Dave Lienau. 7 
 8 
Present: Chairman Lienau, Committee Members Pat Duffy, Joanne Clove and Kathy Enquist, Village 9 
Administrator Zeke Jackson and Finance Director Juliana Neuman 10 
Also Present: Village Staff Members Martha Baker and Janal Suppanz.   11 
 12 
Approval of the Agenda 13 
Duffy moved to approve the agenda and Clove seconded. Motion carried—all Ayes. 14 
 15 
Approval of the Minutes 16 
Duffy moved to approve the minutes of the October 2, 2014 meeting as published. Clove seconded the 17 
motion and all voted Aye. 18 
 19 
Duffy moved to approve the minutes of the October 7, 2014 meeting, and Lienau seconded the motion. 20 
Clove requested several changes on page 2, inserting the phrase “in the context of employment” on line 3 21 
after the words “90-day probation,” inserting the word “combined” on line 20 just before the words 22 
“unused sick…,” and changing the words “currently in effect” on line 39 to read “in effect as of the date of 23 
implementation.” The minutes were then approved as amended, with all voting Aye. 24 
 25 
Enquist moved to approve the minutes of the October 29, 2014 meeting, and Duffy seconded the motion. 26 
Clove clarified Pat Johnson’s remark on lines 36 – 37 as meaning “if there had been a show of hands.” The 27 
minutes were approved with that clarification, with all voting Aye. 28 
 29 
Comments and Correspondence 30 
Mike Dietz’ email regarding industry standards for short-term disability did not satisfy the committee’s 31 
request for a policy with a longer elimination period. Neuman had obtained quotes from Aflac, but they 32 
are far more costly. Lienau requested further research. Duffy suggested asking the McClone firm for 33 
assistance. 34 
 35 
Discussion Items 36 
 37 
Chairman Lienau moved immediately to Item #2, Closed Session. All staff members, including Jackson and 38 
Neuman, left the meeting at Lienau’s request. 39 
 40 
1. Discussion on the PTO policy. Consider a motion to recommend to the Board for action. 41 
None. 42 
 43 
2. Consider a motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to Wisconsin State Statutes 19.85(1)(c) to 44 
discuss personnel and employee benefits. 45 
Motion by Lienau; second by Clove. Roll call: Lienau – Yes   Clove – Yes   Duffy – Yes   Enquist -- Yes 46 
 47 
3.  Consider a motion to reconvene into Open Session. 48 
Motion by Lienau; second by Duffy.  Roll call: Lienau – Yes   Clove – Yes   Duffy – Yes   Enquist -- Yes 49 
 50 
4.  Consider a motion to take action, if required. 51 
None. 52 

74



2 

7. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official or Employee 1 
--Continue a search for other disability policies 2 
 3 
The next Admin and Comp meeting will be held on Thursday, November 13, 2014 at 3:00 PM. 4 
 5 
Adjournment 6 
At approximately 4:30 PM Enquist moved and Duffy seconded that the meeting be adjourned. Motion 7 
carried. 8 
 9 
Respectfully Submitted, 10 

 11 
Juliana Neuman 12 
Finance Director 13 
 14 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\finance\2014\2014_11/11102014 admin/comp minutes - approved version.docx Created: 15 
5/21/2013 9:14 AM Printed: 11/14/2014 2:47 PM Author: Juliana Neuman Last Saved By: Juliana Neuman 16 

75



BAY SHORE DRIVE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 1 

MEETING MINUTES 2 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 11, 2014 3 

(Approval Pending) 4 
 5 
The September 11, 2014 meeting of the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Oversight Committee was 6 
called to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:00 PM. 7 
 8 
Present: Committee Chair Dave Lienau, Members Pat Duffy, and Paige Funkhouser, Village Ad-9 
ministrator Zeke Jackson, Parks Manager Steve Mann, Utilities Manager Steve Jacobson, Utility 10 
Clerk Martha Baker. 11 
Also Present: Mike Valleskey, Dale Swanson, Jeff Pelischek, Dave Walsch and Steve Harvey of 12 
Wisconsin Public Service, Mike Maltby of Action Electric, Dick Endsley and Russ Ryan of Frontier 13 
Communications, Nick Frase of Charter Communications, and residents Heather Olson, Greg 14 
Casperson, Jim Kendrick, Ken Church, James Johnson, Drew Bickford, and John Sawyer. 15 
Absent:  Member Shane Solomon. 16 
 17 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 18 
None. 19 
 20 
Approval of the Agenda and the Minutes: 21 
Duffy moved to approve the agenda of the September 11, 2014 meeting.  Funkhouser seconded 22 
the motion and all voted Aye.  Funkhouser moved to approve the minutes of the July 16, 2014 Bay 23 
Shore Drive Oversight Committee meeting as presented.  Duffy seconded the motion and all voted 24 
Aye. 25 
 26 
Business Items: 27 
1. Consider Approval of Lighting Fixtures for Decorative Lighting for Bay Shore Drive Project; 28 
Discussion and Motion for Action if Necessary. 29 
Jackson presented the committee with information regarding an upgrade of accessory lighting 30 
poles to be placed in the Village.  The recommended fixtures would be an additional cost of ap-31 
proximately $10,000.  After a short discussion Lienau made a motion to approve of the additional 32 
fixtures.  Duffy seconded the motion and all voted Aye. 33 
 34 
2. Presentation by Wisconsin Public Service Corp. and Village regarding burial of overhead utili-35 
ty lines on Bay Shore Drive. 36 
Jackson introduced Mike Valleskey of Wisconsin Public Service Corp. to the members of the 37 
community attending the meeting.  He also introduced representatives from Charter Communica-38 
tions, Frontier Communications, Wisconsin Public Service Corp., and Action Electric, all of whom 39 
where present to answer questions regarding the burial of utilities in the Village.  Valleskey pre-40 
sented a schedule of the work to be done and graphics of the work planned.  Jeff Pelischek of Wis-41 
consin Public Service Corp. discussed traffic flow during construction.  Valleskey then talked 42 
about the switch-over of service and explained that there will be dual service for a short period.  43 
Dave Walsh discussed plants near boxes, saying plants need to be eight to ten feet away from utili-44 
ty boxes keeping them accessible for maintenance.  He said the WPS will remove plants but will 45 
not replace them.  Russ Ryan of Frontier Communications made attendees aware that there will be 46 
utility boxes placed for electric service as well as for communications, noting there could be up to 47 
three boxes in one location.  Attendee Greg Casperson asked about his right-of-way and wondered 48 
if it would be cut back and also asked what would happen if the foundation of his building was 49 
damaged during trenching.  He was told the contractors will have insurance.  Attendee Ken 50 
Church asked what kinds of pads would be used for the boxes and was told concrete.  He then 51 

76



-2- 

asked if electric and communications boxes would share a pad.  He was told they would not.  He 1 
then expressed concern that the boxes will be scattered and that they are not constructed to last 2 
very long and become unsightly.  Attendee James Johnson asked what happens if a property owner 3 
does not wish to have a communications box on his/her property.  He was told property owners 4 
have no choice in box placement because of easements.  A property owner does not have to con-5 
nect to service but service will be made available nonetheless.  Jacobson asked about the remedia-6 
tion plans for after the installation.  Jackson stated they are still in the design phase and won’t have 7 
that answer until designs are finalized.  Jacobson expressed a desire to see remediation plans in 8 
writing regarding the burial of electric utilities.  Jackson will send easement agreements with esti-9 
mates and finalized service designs.  Jackson stated that the Village Board has approved an ex-10 
penditure of up to $45,000.00 for installation of electric utility lines to the properties.  Charter and 11 
Frontier will install lines at their own cost.  Mike Maltby of Action Electric said he will be refining 12 
estimates and walking properties in the very near future. 13 
 14 
3. Matters to be placed of future agenda or referred to a Committee, Official or Employee. 15 
Jackson will send easement agreements with estimates and finalized service designs. 16 
 17 
Adjournment: 18 
At 2:48 PM Funkhouser moved that the meeting be adjourned. Duffy seconded the motion and all 19 
voted Aye. 20 
 21 
 22 
Respectfully submitted, 23 
 24 
 25 
Martha Baker 26 
Utility Clerk 27 
 28 
Name: i:\files\active\agendas\bay shore\2014\2014_07\071614 bsd oversight com. meeting minutes - unapproved v29 

 version1.doc Created: 07/25/2014 11:28 AM Printed: 11/13/2014 2:56 PM Author: Martha Baker 30 

77



Door County Coastal Byway Council
Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, November 12, 2014

Time: 8:30 a.m.
Place: Sevastopol Town Hall, 4528 State Highway 57, Sturgeon Bay WI

Call to Order. Chair Ann Miller called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

Declaration of Quorum/Adopt Agenda. The following Council members were present and
constitute a quorum:
Ann Miller, primary – Town of Liberty Grove
Chuck Tice, primary – Town of Sevastopol
Michelle Anderson, primary – Village of Egg Harbor
Al Birnschein, primary – Town of Jacksonport
Kriss Schorer, primary – Town of Baileys Harbor
Scott Baker, primary – Village of Sister Bay
Beth Hagen, primary – Town of Gibraltar
Also present: Sam Perlman-DCEDC and Linda Wait, recording secretary.
Agenda accepted by consensus.

Approve minutes. Motion by Al and second by Scott to approve the minutes of September 11, 2014.
Carried.

Treasurer’s Report. Sam reported a balance of $16,625.22. Receipts included $37.50 from Johnson
purchase of IP. Town Web Design invoice will be addressed under payment of bills. Motion by Kriss
and second by Chuck to accept the treasurer’s report. Carried.

Pending Business:

A. DCCB review progress on website updating, discussion/action. Beth looked at and liked what she
saw. Ann was unable to get into some of the files. Sam has uploaded a large number of high
resolution photos (from Schmeeckle) to use on the website. They are very large files and time-
consuming to email. Chuck thought we needed more variety—action, people, more water and
should be changed seasonally. Sam suggested members look at the first draft now and start making
comments. He will also check in with Dustin after we pay a portion of his invoice to get a more
detailed progress report. When time allows, Sam will see about each municipality getting a disk of
photos.

B. Port des Mort staircase project –Neptune Dive Club sponsor request – discuss, action. Ann
explained the Club’s request for DCCB support in the way of $1,000 and in return being
recognized with an inscription on one of the stairway risers. Ann also offered them suggestions on
grants and/or personal loans to reach their $25,000 goal (money in the bank). Some DCCB
members expressed that the Dive Club’s efforts were admirable but not a good use of DCCB
dollars and we are not a granting entity. Ann will email John Touscany a note saying we don’t
have authority to make donations and we are already on record as supporting their efforts.

C. Update on grant opportunities for I-plan projects – discussion/action. Sam talked to the Visitor
Bureau about the phone app. They do not have one, based on a philosophical decision that the app
basically recreates the website and they are not interested in pursuing at this point. They are
focusing on their niche brochures and feel those fill the need.

78



Door County Coastal Byway Council Minutes of November 12, 2014 Page 2

Ann checked with Jane on grants through the Wis Department of Tourism and found we
cannot use it for PR or matching dollars. Perhaps down the line, they may change their programs
and play catchup as newer and more mobile technology comes along. There was some discussion
on soliciting for business sponsors. Hold off on app for now.

D. Update on FHWA & National Byway Program/grants status from Congressman Reid Ribble. Ann
did write to Reid’s office hoping for some insight as to the future of the National Scenic Byway
program. His office responded that they were uncertain of what will happen with the NSBP or the
ability to submit applications for NSB status. Ann responded that “it’s not always about the
money” and we would still like to obtain that status to enhance and call recognition to the DCCB.
It was suggested that we contact the other Wis scenic byways, other national byways and perhaps
Chambers and make some noise and a concerted effort—maybe starting with Ron Johnson. Let’s
come back with some names for our next meeting.

E. Discuss methods to utilize in advertising/soliciting sponsor opportunities for phone application on
web site and other byway projects. Sam had a chat with a local game designer who just released a
new Door County coloring book and may be a potential partner for a DCCB coloring book. There
was discussion on what to include: highlights from each community, packs of crayons, business
sponsorship/coupons and contests for local artists to produce pages promoting historical or cultural
experiences. Our IP gave a price tag of $5,000 for all three: 1,500 coloring/activity books, 500
discovery kits and scavenger hunt. It would be a good next step and funds are available. It was the
consensus that there would be no charge, it would be a free distribution. Sam and Beth will
explore the possibility.

New Business & Correspondence. None.

Agenda items for next meeting / suggestions:
▪ lobbying for federal byways—Sam & Ann 
▪ coloring book – Beth & Sam 
▪ website 
▪ brochure holders (February or March) 

Future Meeting Dates. Wednesday, January 14th 2015 – 8:30 a.m. at Baileys Harbor, or at the call of
the Chair.

Payment of any Bills. Received Town Web Design invoice in the amount of $1,460. Motion by
Kriss and second by Beth to pay 50% now and 50% upon completion. Sam expected the website to be
done before January. Motion carried.

Adjourn. Motion by Michelle and second by Chuck to adjourn. Motion carried and meeting
adjourned at 9:38 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Wait, recording secretary [draft 11/13/2014]

185 East Walnut Street, Sturgeon Bay WI 54235
Telephone: (920) 743-3113

www.doorcountycoastalbyway.org

79



80



81



82



FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2014 2 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 3 
 4 
 5 
The Village of Sister Bay Finance Committee meeting of October 15, 2014, was called to order by 6 
Chairman Shane Solomon at 8:10 AM. 7 
 8 
Present: Chairman Shane Solomon, Committee Members Pat Duffy and Dave Lienau, and Finance 9 
Director Juliana Neuman. 10 
Absent: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson 11 
 12 
Approval of the Agenda 13 
Solomon moved and Duffy seconded. Motion carried. 14 
Approval of minutes as attached 15 
None were provided 16 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public 17 
None 18 
 19 
Discussion Items  20 
1. Review and discussion of 2015 Budget; consider a motion for action if necessary. 21 
Committee members discussed selected line items, as follows:  22 

a) Page 2, Governmental Funds, Other Revenues: This line is over $900,000 for 2014 because of 23 
the sale of the Old School ($415,000) and the major donation for the Pavilion ($435,000). In 24 
2015, we expect to receive at least $383,000 from the DOT for the 6f property and donations 25 
for economic development totaling $4000. 26 

b) Page 5, Revenues, Sale of Property: The $19,900 received in 2014 was for the sale of a small 27 
lot on Highland Road. 28 

c) Page 6, General Government, Travel/Training: The increase for 2015 is for the possible 29 
inclusion of a Village Trustee in the County’s trip to China. (The Village Administrator’s costs 30 
for this trip are shown on page 9.) 31 

d)  Page 9, Administration, TIF Admin Transfer: This line item reimburses the General Fund for 32 
an estimate of time spent by administrative staff on Tax Incremental District projects and 33 
development.  34 

e)  Page 9, Staff Team-Building:  This is a new line item that will provide Jackson with some 35 
funding for staff development. The next line, Recognition has been increased to $4000 to 36 
provide for staff incentives/bonuses. 37 

f)  Page 9, Printing and Copying: Duffy asked why this expenditure has not decreased, as a result 38 
of paperless meeting materials. Expenditures for paper have decreased, as shown on line 39 
52401, Office Supplies.  Line 52405, Printing and Copying, shows the cost of the copier lease, 40 
which increases each year, as well as the per page charges. Recent lawsuits have required the 41 
copying of huge amounts of material. 42 

g)  Page 10, Solomon questioned the postage meter lease, since postage can be printed out online, 43 
using Stamps.com, whereby USPS provides a free postage scale and meter, with payment by 44 
credit card. 45 

h)  Page 11, Parks Workers Comp Insurance:  The increase is due to higher rates for Village 46 
workers, along with a higher experience modification factor for 2015. 47 

i)  Page 11, Medical Insurance:  An additional employee has been added, and rates have increased 48 
by an average of 24.1%, although the Village share of the cost has decreased by 5%. 49 

j)  Page 12, Lawn Maintenance (Tru-green Chemical):  Costs were higher this year because we 50 
missed the deadline for pre-payment. 51 

83



2 

k)  Page 15, Ice Rink Fund, Admission Fees:  A new revenue line item whereby non-residents will 1 
be charged admission. It is likely that donations will decrease as a result (line 48500). 2 

l)  Page 18, Capital Project Requests:  A sledding hill is to be built at the Sports Complex at a cost 3 
of up to $20,000. ‘Marketing’ is a new $50,000 line item for promotion of Sister Bay by 4 
means of major events and advertising. 5 

m)  Page 20, Tax Incremental District:  The capital outlay costs for projects are still estimates. 6 
n)  Page 22, Marina Manager Wages:  The increase shown will elevate this position to salaried 7 

with benefits. During the winter months the cost will be shared by the Ice Rink Fund. 8 
Solomon expressed concern that the total personnel cost increase ($50,000) is more than the 9 
Marina budget can handle. Neuman will check on the accuracy of the medical insurance line. 10 

o) Page 24, Marina PILOT:  The basic formula by which the Marina property value is calculated 11 
remains the same except that the Village mill rate should be applied rather than the total mill 12 
rate previously used.  The intent is to reduce the PILOT amount in steps over the next few 13 
years until it corresponds to the Village mill rate times the total value of the property. 14 

p)  Pages 27, 30 and 34, Utility Impact Fees:  Although new construction of individual homes is 15 
down, we do expect impact fees from developer projects by Garot and on the Old School site. 16 

q)  Pages 29 and 37, Utility Bay Shore Drive Project:  Estimates on the completion of the water 17 
and sewer main project (on the hill) are not yet available. 18 

r)  Page 38, Debt Service Fund, Room Taxes:  Lienau asked whether there has been any 19 
discussion about raising the room tax rate. Neuman had not heard of any change for 2015. 20 

s)  Page 38, Debt Service, Loan to Garot:  This has been entered as a wash, with Garot covering 21 
the first year interest-only payments, but the Developer agreement may require more of him. 22 

 23 
2. Review and discussion of Allowable Levy for 2015. 24 
The allowable levy is currently $2,125,042, pending any changes from the Department of Revenue. 25 
3. Review proposed capital projects for 2015. 26 
Included above. Up-to-date capital reserve amounts were provided as background. 27 
 28 
Solomon recommend the 2015 Budget, as amended, to the Village Board for approval. Duffy seconded 29 
the motion and all voted Aye. 30 
4. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, official or employee. 31 
--Investigate Stamps.com as an alternative to the postage meter lease, which expires on 11/10/14. 32 
--Consider pre-payment of the Tru-green Chemical contract for 2015. 33 
--Continue to improve estimates for project costs. 34 
--Check accuracy of the Marina medical insurance line item. 35 
--Update the Marina PILOT formula annually. 36 
--Incorporate the capital reserve spreadsheet into the budget packet. 37 
Adjournment 38 
At 9:19 AM Solomon moved and Duffy seconded that the meeting be adjourned. Motion carried. 39 
 40 
Respectfully submitted, 41 

 42 
Juliana Neuman 43 
Village Finance Director 44 
 45 
Name: h:\files\active\agendas\finance\2014\2014_10\10152014 finance minutes - unapproved version.docx Created: 46 
5/21/2013 9:14 AM Printed: 11/14/2014 2:48 PM Author: Juliana Neuman Last Saved By: Juliana Neuman 47 

84



85



86



87



88



 1 

MARINA COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 2 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2014 3 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 4 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 5 
 6 
The October 14, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee was called to order by Chairperson 7 
John Clove at 2:08 P.M. 8 
 9 
Present:  Chairperson Clove, and members Shane Solomon, Pat Duffy, Fuzzy Sunstrom and 10 
Kevin Roberts. 11 
 12 
Excused:  Jeff Flegel 13 
 14 
Others:  Chad Kodanko 15 
 16 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Marina Manager Wendy Tatzel, and 17 
Administrative Assistant Janal Suppanz. 18 
 19 
Approval of the agenda: 20 
A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Solomon that the agenda for the October 14, 21 
2014 meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 22 
 23 
Approval of minutes as published: 24 
As to the minutes for the September 16, 2014 meeting of the Marina Committee: 25 
A motion was made by Duffy, seconded by Solomon that the minutes for the September 16, 26 
2014 meeting of the Marina Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 27 
 28 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 29 
Clove asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one responded. 30 
  31 
Business Items: 32 
Item No. 4. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., 33 
§19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the purchase of public properties, the investment of 34 
public funds, or conduct other specified public business whenever competitive or bargaining 35 
reasons require a closed session: 36 
At  2:12 P.M. a motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that the Marina Committee 37 
convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(e) to deliberate or negotiate the 38 
purchase of public properties, the investment of public funds, or conduct other specified public 39 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. A roll call vote 40 
was taken on the motion and the Committee members voted in the following fashion: 41 
 42 

Clove – Aye; 43 
Duffy – Aye; 44 

Roberts – Aye; 45 
Solomon – Aye; 46 
Sunstrom – Aye. 47 

Motion carried – All ayes. 48 
 49 

89



Minutes of the October 14, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

~ 2 ~ 

 

Item No. 5. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 1 
At 3:01 P.M. a motion was made by Clove seconded by Sunstrom that the Marina Committee 2 
reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken on that motion and the 3 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 4 

Clove – Aye; 5 
Duffy – Aye; 6 

Roberts – Aye; 7 
Solomon – Aye; 8 
Sunstrom – Aye. 9 

 10 
Motion carried – All ayes. 11 
 12 
Item No. 6. Consider a motion to take action if required: 13 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that on October 15, 2014 Tatzel shall 14 
provide written Notice of Intent to Cancel which is compliant with the terms of the contract 15 
entered into with Lundquist Realty for rental of the boathouse to the designated representatives 16 
of that agency. Motion carried – All ayes. 17 
 18 
 A motion was made by Sunstrom, seconded by Duffy that as soon as the required notice 19 
period has expired with respect to the contract with Lundquist Realty, Village officials shall enter 20 
into a contract with Door County Property Management for the rental of the Boathouse. That 21 
contract shall be in effect from the date of execution through December 31, 2015.  Motion 22 
carried – All ayes.  23 
 24 
The Committee members indicated that they look forward to working with Kodanko and his 25 
associates. 26 

Clove pointed out that near the end of this meeting another closed session would be conducted 27 
pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c). 28 
 29 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding the 2015 Schedule of Fees and consider a motion to take 30 
action, if required: 31 
A draft of a Schedule of Fees for the Marina for 2015 was included in the meeting packets and 32 
the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. It was the consensus that the Fee 33 
Schedule is acceptable as presented. 34 
 35 
Discussion took place regarding rental of vacant seasonal slips and utilization of the Waiting 36 
List, and it was the consensus that persons whose names are on that list should be contacted 37 
much sooner this year. The Committee members also stressed that they have no desire to have 38 
Tatzel come to them for permission to perform minor administrative tasks, including 39 
amendment of the fees contained on the previously mentioned schedule. 40 
 41 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding marketing of the Marina and consider a motion to take 42 
action if required:  43 
Discussion took place regarding installation of more visible signage for the commercial boating 44 
operations, and the suggestion was made that long duration temporary signage which is 45 
compliant with the Sign Code be mounted on the commercial kiosk. 46 
 47 
Tatzel noted that a marketing calendar for 2014-2015 as well as a proposed marketing budget 48 
were included in the meeting packets and the Committee members jointly reviewed those 49 

90



Minutes of the October 14, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

~ 3 ~ 

 

documents. During the review process Tatzel noted that she does intend to seek sponsors for 1 
several of the stated activities so the expenses delineated on the marketing budget should 2 
actually be cheaper than anticipated. The suggestions were made that a CPR course be 3 
conducted in conjunction with the Boaters’ Safety Course, that a floating golf tournament as 4 
opposed to a regular golf tournament be conducted, and that co-op advertising be done with 5 
other area marinas in boating magazines.           6 
 7 
At 4:20 P.M. Sunstrom indicated that he had another engagement and left the meeting. 8 
  9 
Item No. 3.  Discussion regarding marina activities with Wendy Tatzel, Marina Manager: 10 
Tatzel gave the following oral report: 11 
 12 

    Fuel Dock:  13 
She met with a representative of Petroleum Services several weeks ago concerning 14 
installation of a fuel dock and is still waiting for a cost estimate. At this time the end of 15 
“B” Dock is the preferred location for a pressurized buried fuel system.  16 
 17 

    Bathroom Update: 18 
The painters will be coming to sandblast and paint the restrooms on October 24, 2014. 19 
The public restroom renovation project has also been let for bids.   20 
 21 

    Operations: 22 
Seasonal closing and shutdown of Marina facilities will be occurring very soon. She 23 
does intend to contact the people on the Waiting List soon and will request e-mail 24 
addresses for all of them.   25 
 26 

    Projects: 27 
The suggestion has been made that a gas powered fire pit be installed at the Marina. 28 
Tatzel will be looking into several different fire pit alternatives over the course of the 29 
winter.  30 

 31 
Item No. 8. Consider a motion to discuss matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 32 
to a committee, official or employee: 33 
The Marina Committee will not be meeting in November. Therefore, the next meeting of the  34 
Committee was scheduled for 2:00 P.M. on December 2, 2014.  35 
 36 
Continuation of Item No. 4. Consider a motion to convene into closed session pursuant to 37 
Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and employee benefits: 38 
At  4:42 P.M. a motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy that the Marina Committee 39 
convene into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats., §19.85(1)(c) to discuss personnel and 40 
employee benefits. A roll call was taken on the motion and the Committee members voted in 41 
the following fashion: 42 
 43 

Clove – Aye; 44 
Duffy – Aye; 45 

Roberts – Aye; 46 
Solomon – Aye. 47 

 48 
Motion carried – All ayes. 49 
  50 

91



Minutes of the October 14, 2014 Meeting of the Marina Committee 

~ 4 ~ 

 

Continuation of Item No. 5. Consider a motion to reconvene into open session: 1 
At 4:51 P.M. a motion was made by Clove seconded by Duffy that the Marina Committee 2 
reconvene into open session. Another roll call vote was taken on that motion and the 3 
Committee members voted in the following fashion: 4 
 5 

Clove – Aye; 6 
Duffy – Aye; 7 

Roberts – Aye; 8 
Solomon – Aye. 9 

 10 
Motion carried – All ayes. 11 
 12 
Continuation of Item No. 6. Consider a motion to take action if required: 13 
No formal action was taken. 14 
 15 
Item No. 7. Consider a motion to discuss matters to be placed on a future agenda or 16 
referred to a committee, official or employee: 17 
It was the consensus that the following items shall be placed on a future agenda or 18 
referred to a committee, official or employee: 19 
 20 

A.    Update on the restroom renovation project; 21 
B.    Update on the fire pit project; 22 
C.    Update on the painting project;  23 
D.  Review of the 5 Year CIP, including discussion regarding installation of a fuel 24 

dock. 25 
 26 
Adjournment: 27 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Duffy to adjourn the meeting of the Marina 28 
Committee at 4:46 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 29 
 30 
Respectfully submitted,  31 

 32 
Janal Suppanz,  33 
Administrative Assistant 34 

92



PARKS, PROPERTIES & STREETS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1 

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 5, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY-LIBERTY GROVE FIRE STATION – 2258 MILL ROAD 3 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 4 

 5 

The November 5, 2014 meeting of the Parks, Properties and Streets Committee was called 6 
to order by Committee Chair Dave Lienau at 2:17 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Committee Chair Dave Lienau and members John Clove, Sharon Doersching and 9 
Scott Baker.   10 
 11 
Staff Members: Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Facilities Manager Steve Mann, and 12 
Administrative Assistant Janal Suppanz.  13 
 14 
Others:   Allison Vroman and Jordan Burress of the Door County YMCA, Jeff Bakke, Lyle 15 
Bruss and Paige Funkhouser.  16 
 17 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 18 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received, and then asked if anyone in 19 
the audience wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. 20 
 21 
Lyle Bruss stated that he and a group of citizens would like to see a sculpture park which is 22 
complete with walking trails created on the Village owned property adjacent to the Fire 23 
Station. He then presented a copy of a brochure from another community’s sculpture park, 24 
and the Committee members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process 25 
the committee members noted that they are open to Bruss’ suggestion, but asked that he 26 
look into grant opportunities which may be available. It was the consensus that this issue 27 
shall be reviewed at length at the next Parks Committee Meeting.  28 
 29 
Paige Funkhouser of the SBAA noted that Fall Fest went quite well in spite of the weather. 30 
She also thanked Steve Mann and the other Parks Department employees for all their 31 
assistance. The ping pong ball drop took place on the Braun property because the FAA 32 
approved that plan. There are still Fall Fest shirts, hats and caps available for sale.  33 
 34 
Funkhouser asked if Village officials plan to see that the area where construction and line 35 
burial will be taking place will be decorated for Christmas, as a number of logistical issues 36 
could arise, and it was the consensus that this issue shall be addressed at the next Parks 37 
Committee Meeting. She also pointed out that it may work better to place “Santa’s 38 
Mailbox” by her office this year.    39 
 40 
Approval of minutes as published: 41 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Doersching that the minutes for the October 1, 42 
2014 meeting of the Parks, Properties & Street Committee be approved as presented. 43 
Motion carried – All ayes. 44 
 45 
Approval of Agenda: 46 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the November 5, 47 
2014 meeting of the Parks Committee be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 48 

93



Minutes for the November 5, 2014 Meeting of the Parks, Property & Streets Committee 

 

- 2 - 

Business Items: 1 
Item No. 1. Discussion regarding gravel placement at the Dog Park; Consider a motion 2 
for action: 3 
Jeff Bakke of the Dog Park Group indicated that due to the heavy rains and overuse of the 4 
Dog Park, the area of the park from the gate to the shelter is getting quite muddy and worn. 5 
The Maintenance Department employees delivered wood chips out there and that measure 6 
is greatly appreciated, but the members of the Dog Park Group are asking that gravel be 7 
laid over the area from the fence to the culvert as there are drainage issues.  8 
 9 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Baker that Steve Mann shall see that a 10 
sufficient amount of gravel is delivered to the Dog Park and spread out over the areas 11 
where fill is needed. The funds for that project shall be withdrawn from the Various Parks 12 
Projects Account. Motion carried – All ayes.   13 
   14 
Bakke also suggested that during the winter months a covered sand container be placed 15 
out at the Dog Park. It was the consensus that this would be a good idea. 16 
 17 
Item No. 2. Discussion regarding the placement of a donation box at the Dog Park; 18 
Consider a motion for action if necessary: 19 
At the last Village Board Meeting Kathy Enquist pointed out that since dogs are not allowed 20 
in the Village’s parks visitors to the area are often instructed to take their dogs out to the 21 
Dog Park. She suggested that a locked donation box be placed out there in case people 22 
wish to make donations to help cover operational expenses. 23 
 24 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Clove that Steve Mann shall see that a sturdy 25 
donation box is constructed and placed out at the Dog Park. The funds for the cost of 26 
fabricating the donation box shall be withdrawn from the Various Parks Projects Account. 27 
Motion carried – All ayes.  28 
 29 
Item No. 3. Discussion regarding a request from the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile 30 
Club to alter the designated snowmobile route; Consider a motion for action if necessary: 31 
Mann indicated that Kirby Olson of the Top O’ The Thumb Snowmobile Club has 32 
requested that the designated snowmobile route be altered a bit. Basically if snowmobilers 33 
use the established snowmobile route they are required to bypass the downtown area. 34 
Olson is proposing that the route depicted on the map which was included in the meeting 35 
packets be approved. The new route would be used on a trial basis, and if it works the 36 
members of the snowmobile club would be interested in helping with land clearing. A 37 
designated snowmobile parking area would also be created out at the Sports Complex.  38 
 39 
Mann indicated that it is his understanding that the members of the Top O’ The Thumb 40 
Snowmobile Club have expressed interest in conducting radar runs or other snowmobile 41 
related events out at the Sports Complex during the winter months. 42 
 43 
A motion was made by Clove, seconded by Baker that the snowmobile route map which 44 
was included in the meeting packets is approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes.     45 
 46 
Item No. 4. Presentation by the YMCA on annual program activities in Sister Bay; 47 
Discussion regarding that matter, and consider a motion for action if necessary: 48 
Allison Vroman and Jordan Burress of the Door County YMCA presented a proposal for 49 

94



Minutes for the November 5, 2014 Meeting of the Parks, Property & Streets Committee 

 

- 3 - 

collaborative programming for 2015 and the Committee members jointly reviewed that 1 
documentation. The youth summer programs were well attended by children of Village 2 
residents, and because of that fact the fee structure for the camps has changed a bit. In 3 
accord with the proposal which was presented at this meeting the Village would incur 4 
costs of $12,288 for adult and youth YMCA programming in 2015. The Committee 5 
members indicated that they have been very happy with the YMCA programming, and it 6 
was the consensus that this issue shall be addressed at length at the December Parks 7 
Committee Meeting. 8 
 9 
Doersching suggested that next year better marketing be done for the Sister Bay/YMCA 10 
programming, and it was the consensus that this issue shall be referred to the Marketing 11 
Committee. 12 
 13 
Item No. 5. Discussion on the use of Waterfront Park for tented events in 2015; Consider 14 
a motion for action if necessary: 15 
A number of calls have been received regarding the availability of Waterfront Park for 16 
tented events in 2015. Since work will be done on the beach and line burial projects there 17 
is some concern as to whether that area will even be accessible for a while. 18 
 19 
It was the consensus that Village Administrative staff members shall be given discretion to 20 
decide when Waterfront Park may be utilized for tented events. 21 
 22 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding potential petroleum contamination of Hendrickson Park 23 
(From the Old Texaco Gas Station): 24 
It was the consensus that this agenda item shall be tabled. 25 
 26 
Item No. 7. Report from Steve Mann on activities: 27 
Mann gave an oral report regarding the following issues: 28 

 The sewer line and lift pump for the baseball concession stand have been installed 29 
out at the Sports Complex. 30 

 The Maintenance Department employees have identified a number of instances 31 
where it would be helpful to have a cement mixer. It was the consensus that this 32 
would be a worthwhile purchase. Mann and Jackson will see that one is ordered. 33 

 Work has been done on the lateral to the Village Hall. Some street light lines had to 34 
be disconnected and unfortunately the sprinkler system was damaged. The contract 35 
calls for lawn restoration work to be done, but the Maintenance Department 36 
employees could do that work. It was the consensus that if cost savings will be 37 
realized that will be fine. 38 

 The Marina has “been put away” for the season. 39 

 In an attempt to minimize ice damage the bubblers at the Marina will be installed 40 
differently this year. 41 

 As a result of the last couple of wind storms the old Helm’s Dock was destroyed 42 
and boards have been floating around in the water by the Yacht Club at Sister Bay. 43 
To date three dump truck loads of boards have been hauled away from that area. 44 
The Parks Department employees will continue to monitor the situation and will 45 
see that as many of the boards as possible are removed in a timely fashion. 46 

 The furnaces at the Maintenance Department Building are very old and need to be 47 
replaced. The funds have been budgeted for this expenditure and Mann will see 48 

95



Minutes for the November 5, 2014 Meeting of the Parks, Property & Streets Committee 

I:\2014 Agendas\Parks\2014\2014_11\110514 Parks Com. Meeting Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 11/5/2014; Last Printed:  11/14/2014 12:49 PM 

- 4 - 

that two new propane furnaces are installed. The oil furnace will be retained as a 1 
back-up measure.     2 
 3 

The Committee members thanked Mann and the other Parks Department employees for all 4 
their efforts. 5 
 6 
Item No. 8. Discussion on other parks and streets activities: 7 
Jackson noted that weather permitting work should be commencing on the line burial 8 
project in February or March. He also noted that an estimate from Hockers Excavating for 9 
the sledding hill was included in the meeting packets. The black dirt will have to be 10 
pushed back before it freezes. That estimate came in lower than had been anticipated.  11 
 12 
Item No. 9. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a 13 
committee, official or employee: 14 
It was the consensus that the following issues shall be addressed at the next Parks 15 
Committee Meeting: 16 

 Discussion regarding creation of a sculpture park and a walking trail on the 17 
property adjacent to the Fire Station. 18 

 Discussion regarding erection and placement of Christmas decorations in the area 19 
where road construction and line burial will be taking place. 20 

 Discussion regarding the YMCA’s programming proposal for 2015. 21 
 22 
Discussion regarding potential petroleum contamination of Hendrickson Park (From the 23 
Old Texaco Gas Station) will also be placed on a future Parks Committee Agenda as soon 24 
as more information is available. 25 
 26 
Clove suggested that after an upcoming meeting the Parks Committee sponsor a “pizza 27 
party” for the Maintenance Department employees as a way of showing gratitude to those 28 
employees for all their efforts. It was the consensus that this shall occur. 29 
 30 
Adjournment: 31 
A motion was made by Lienau, seconded by Doersching to adjourn the meeting of the 32 
Parks Committee at 3:50 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes.  33 
 34 
Respectfully submitted,  35 

 36 
Janal Suppanz,  37 
Administrative Assistant 38 

96



PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2014 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station – 2258 Mill Road 3 

(APPROVAL PENDING) 4 
 5 
The October 28, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson 6 
Dave Lienau at 5:31 P.M. 7 
 8 
Present:  Chairperson Lienau, and members Scott Baker, Shane Solomon and Don Howard.  9 
 10 
Excused:  Eric Lundquist   11 
 12 
Absent:  Marge Grutzmacher and Nate Bell 13 
 14 
Others:  Lee and Ruth Telfer, Karen McCarthy, Kathy Enquist, Gary Dooley, Curt and Roxie 15 
Wiltse, Jay Kita, Greg Casperson, John Ostran, Lynn Church, Jill Wettstein and two other 16 
individuals.  17 
 18 
Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, and Administrative Assistant Janal 19 
Suppanz. 20 
 21 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 22 
Jackson read a letter which had been received from Bob Sitte aloud. In that letter Sitte requests 23 
that the Village consider a Zoning Code amendment which allows metal siding in the R-3 24 
District. Lienau then asked if anyone wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item. No one 25 
responded.  26 
 27 
Approval of the agenda: 28 
A motion was made by Solomon, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the October 28, 2014 29 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 30 
 31 
Approval of minutes as published: 32 
As to the minutes for the September 23, 2014 meeting of the Plan Commission: 33 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Howard that the minutes for the September 23, 34 
2014 meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 35 
  36 
Business Items: 37 
Item No. 1.  Public Hearing regarding amendment and recreation of §66.0323, 38 
Grandfathering in the B-3 Zoning District; Consider a motion to discuss and make a 39 
recommendation to the Village Board for action: 40 
The D.O.T. Hwy. 42 Reconstruction Project will substantially change the centerline of 41 
Highway 42 and require the acquisition of rights-of-way throughout the project area, which 42 
will change existing lot sizes and setbacks, and, in effect, create non-conforming structures. 43 
Over the course of the past several months the Plan Commission has been discussing this issue, 44 
and a draft of proposed amendments to §66.0323 of the Zoning Code – Grandfathering in the 45 
B-3 Zoning District, was included in the meeting packets. Basically if the proposed amendment 46 
is approved, §66.0323 will read, “lots shall count rights-of-way to the center line for purposes 47 
of calculating area, setbacks and open space”.  48 
 49 
 50 

97



Minutes of the October 28, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -2-  

 

At 5:35 P.M. Lienau called the public hearing regarding amendment and recreation of 1 
§66.0323 – Grandfathering in the B-3 Zoning District, to order and asked if anyone wished to 2 
comment regarding the proposed amendment. 3 
 4 
Lee Telfer indicated that his wife and her brother own property which will be adversely affected 5 
by the right-of-way acquisition, and noted that he and his family members are definitely in 6 
favor of the proposed Zoning Code amendment. 7 
 8 
At 5:40 P.M. Lienau asked for a show of hands as to who was opposed to the amendment, and 9 
no one in the audience responded affirmatively. He then asked if anyone else wished to 10 
comment, and when no one responded he declared that the hearing was officially closed. 11 
 12 
A motion was made by Baker, seconded by Howard that the recommendation is made to the 13 
Village Board that the proposed amendment to §66.0323 of the Zoning Code – Grandfathering 14 
in the B-3 Zoning District, be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 15 
 16 
Item No. 2. Discussion on a proposal from the Country Walk Shops Association on signage 17 
changes: 18 
Item No. 3. Review of §66.0711 - Shopping Center Signage; Consider potential draft 19 
amendments and a motion to proceed to public hearing: 20 
The signage which is currently displayed on the Country Walk Shops property does not make it 21 
clear that the Country Walk Shops complex consists of a number of individual shops as well as 22 
the Piggly Wiggly Grocery Store. Oftentimes visitors to the area do not even know that there are 23 
any shops or a grocery store located within that complex, or, if they do, they cannot find them. 24 
For quite some time the members of the Plan Commission have indicated that they realize there 25 
are issues with the Country Walks Shops signage and would be willing to work with the 26 
members of the Country Walk Owner’s Association on workable solutions to the problems 27 
which have been identified. A signage proposal which was submitted by the Country Walk 28 
Owner’s Association as well as a copy of §66.0711 – the existing shopping center signage 29 
regulations, was included in the meeting packets and the Commission members jointly 30 
reviewed those documents. Jackson is recommending that the Commission formulate Zoning 31 
Code amendments which permit a specific number of square feet of signage based upon 32 
frontage as soon as possible as detours will be in effect which will direct traffic past the Country 33 
Walk Shops when work is done on the highway reconstruction project.   34 
 35 
Karen McCarthy indicated that she is the owner of Tea Thyme, one of the shops in the Country 36 
Walk complex. When the Country Walk Shops were originally constructed in the 1980’s it was 37 
a thriving shopping center with attractive walkways and was a “shopping destination” for many 38 
people. She and the other unit owners in the Country Walk Shops would like to revitalize that 39 
facility, and, to that end they presented the previously mentioned signage proposal. On a 40 
number of occasions visitors to the area have told McCarthy that they didn’t even know any of 41 
the shops even existed. She and her associates believe the signage proposal they are presenting 42 
would solve some, but not all of the identified issues, and they are working on solutions to all 43 
of them. They also believe there is a disparity between the signage regulations for downtown 44 
businesses and shopping centers and are hoping that the Plan Commission will consider their 45 
proposal. For the past few months individual businesses have been able to display temporary 46 
business identification signage on the main shopping center sign which is displayed on S. Bay 47 
Shore Drive, and that has been very helpful. 48 
 49 

98



Minutes of the October 28, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

It was the consensus that §66.0711 of the Zoning Code shall be amended in such fashion that it 1 
states that: 2 

    The fronts of any buildings which allow access to individual shops within a shopping 3 
center shall be considered when the allowable amount of square footage for signage is 4 
calculated, and a multiplier of .75 X the width of all store frontage shall be used when 5 
those calculations are made.  6 
Further:  7 

     No more than two marquee signs which may be up to 12 feet tall and 72 square feet in 8 
size will be allowed for shopping centers; 9 

     No more than one ground sign will be allowed for shopping centers;    10 

     Stand alone businesses within shopping centers which are currently allowed 8 square 11 
feet of signage shall be allowed 12 square feet of signage;  12 

    Stand alone businesses within shopping centers which are currently allowed 12 square 13 
feet of signage shall be allowed 16 square feet of signage; and, 14 

    None of the previously mentioned amendments will apply to shopping centers located 15 
within the B-2 or B-3 Districts. 16 
     17 

A motion was made by Howard, seconded by Baker that a public hearing shall be conducted 18 
regarding the previously mentioned amendments to §66.0711 of the Zoning Code – Shopping 19 
Center Signage, at the November Plan Commission Meeting. Motion carried – All ayes.  20 
 21 
Item No. 4. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 22 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 23 
In accord with the Commission’s directives Jackson contacted the employees in the County’s 24 
Zoning Office regarding the new wetland delineations which appear on proposed mapping for 25 
the Village. The DNR makes those delineations, and it appears that a mistake may have been 26 
made on the new mapping. The map on which wetlands are identified is a “planning tool” and 27 
it will not be necessary for Village officials to adopt it if they do not believe it’s accurate. It was 28 
the consensus that DNR officials shall be asked to review the map and correct it if they deem 29 
that action is necessary. 30 
 31 
Some time ago a Long Duration Event Sign Permit was issued to Brad Massey for his temporary 32 
yoga business signage. Massey has now erected permanent signage for his business without 33 
applying for a regular Sign Permit. Massey was contacted regarding this issue and subsequently 34 
did submit a Sign Permit Application. It was the consensus that Massey shall be informed that 35 
the Plan Commission does not condone his actions, but if the Village Administrator determines 36 
that his new sign is compliant a Sign Permit will be issued for his new sign.  37 

 38 
Item No. 6. Discussion regarding matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred 39 
to a committee, Village official or employee: 40 
It was the consensus that:  41 

1.    At the November Plan Commission Meeting a public hearing shall be 42 
conducted regarding the previously mentioned amendments to §66.0711 of the 43 
Zoning Code. 44 

2.    The wetland delineation issue shall be referred to the DNR for review and 45 
possible revision. 46 

3.    At the November Plan Commission Meeting the provisions of the Village’s 47 
Architectural Guidelines shall be reviewed, and discussion shall take place 48 
regarding the possibility of amending them in such fashion that a metal side 49 
building is allowed. 50 

99



Minutes of the October 28, 2014 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\2014 Agendas\Plan Comm\2014\2014_10\102814 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 
Created by Janal Suppanz on 10/28/2014; Last Printed:  11/13/2014 2:55 PM 

 -4-  

 

Adjournment: 1 
A motion was made by Howard, seconded by Solomon to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 2 
Commission at 7:34 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 3 
 4 
Respectfully submitted,  5 

 6 
Janal Suppanz,  7 
Administrative Assistant 8 

100



SBAA BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 1 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2014 2 

SISTER BAY ADVANCEMENT ASSOCIATION COORDINATOR’S OFFICE 3 

10668 N. BAY SHORE DRIVE  4 

 (APPROVAL PENDING) 5 

 6 

The November 6, 2014 meeting of the Sister Bay Advancement Association Board of 7 
Directors was called to order by President Steve Gomoll at 8:07 A.M.    8 
 9 
Present:   Steve Gomoll, Jessica Grasse, Windy Bittorf, Heidi Hitzeman, Drew Bickford,  10 
Tonya Crowell, Nora Zacek, Jeannie Hoffman and Ron Kane.    11 
 12 
Staff Members:   Paige Funkhouser, SBAA Coordinator, and Janal Suppanz, Secretary. 13 
 14 
Excused:  Larry Gajda and James Larsen 15 
 16 
Business Items: 17 
Item No. 1.  Approval of the Agenda: 18 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Bickford, that the Agenda for the November 6, 19 
2014 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as presented. Motion carried – 20 
All ayes. 21 
 22 
Item No. 2.  Approval of the minutes for the October 2, 2014 meeting of the SBAA Board 23 
of Directors: 24 
Kane noted that he was elected to the Board of Directors at the Fall Dinner.  Therefore, he 25 
should be listed as a member in attendance at the October 2, 1024 meeting. 26 
 27 
Funkhouser noted that the sentence which begins on Line 41 - Page 3 of the October 2, 28 
2014 meeting minutes should read, “The Family Centers of Door County have informed 29 
Funkhouser that they would be interested in bringing their Children’s Christmas Store to the 30 
Village.” 31 
 32 
A motion was made by Zacek, seconded by Hitzeman that the minutes for the October 2, 33 
2014 meeting of the SBAA Board of Directors be approved as amended. Motion carried – 34 
All ayes. 35 
 36 
Item No. 3.  Financial Report: 37 
Bittorf distributed financial reports and the Board members jointly reviewed those 38 
documents.  39 
 40 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Bickford that the financial reports which 41 
were reviewed at this meeting are approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 42 
 43 
Funkhouser presented a donation request she received from The Door County String 44 
Academy.  45 
 46 
A motion was made by Bickford, seconded by Gomoll that $40.00 shall be donated to the 47 
Door County String Academy. Motion carried – All ayes. 48 

101



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  November 6, 2014 

- 2 - 

Item No. 4. Election of Officers: 1 
Gomoll indicated that he and Grasse’s terms as President and Vice-President of the SBAA 2 
will be expiring, and neither of them wish to run for office again. He then nominated Drew 3 
Bickford to serve as President, Ron Kane to serve as Vice-President, and Windy Bittorf to 4 
again serve as Treasurer. All those nominations were seconded by Hoffman. Gomoll asked 5 
if anyone else wished to make any more nominations, and when no one responded he 6 
declared that nominations were closed. 7 
 8 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Hoffman that Drew Bickford shall be 9 
elected to serve as President of the SBAA Board of Directors, Ron Kane shall be elected to 10 
serve as Vice-President of that Board and Windy Bittorf shall be re-elected Treasurer. 11 
Motion carried – All ayes. 12 
 13 
The Board members thanked Gomoll and Grasse for all their service and welcomed 14 
Bickford and Kane to their new positions. 15 
 16 
Item No. 5. Discussion regarding the SBAA budget for 2015: 17 
Work will be commencing on the 2015 SBAA budget soon. Therefore, Funkhouser and 18 
Bittorf requested that the Board members provide input on the following line items.  19 
 20 

 With respect to the “Goats On Poles Project”, the suggestion was made that as 21 
many of the existing goats as possible be utilized but left up for a longer period of 22 
time next year. The suggestion was also made that five special goats be created 23 
with the intention of auctioning them off during the Festival of the Arts.  Lars 24 
Johnson has requested that the goat parade be conducted in June rather than May 25 
as the weather is just too unpredictable. 26 

 27 

 It was the consensus that next year the majority of the Concerts In The Park shall be 28 
conducted during the evening hours. It is Funkhouser’s understanding that Village 29 
officials would prefer to see “bigger name acts” perform in the new Performance 30 
Pavilion. Before any “bigger name acts” are booked, major sponsorships will be 31 
required. Funkhouser has been discussing the possibility of partnering with the 32 
Door County Auditorium on some of the concerts, so in some instances cost 33 
savings could be realized. The suggestion has also been made that “Movies In The 34 
Park” and Concerts In The Park be alternated. In the 2015 budget the line items 35 
which have been designated Concert/Movie In The Park Income and 36 
Concert/Movie In the Park Expenses will be changed to “Park Entertainment 37 
Income” and “Park Entertainment Expenses”.      38 

 39 

 Several local business owners have informed Funkhouser that they have staffing 40 
issues, and, therefore, she has been looking into the possibility of attending some 41 
upcoming career fairs. UW-Stout will be conducting such a fair on March 3 and 4, 42 
2015, and she would like to erect a Sister Bay booth at that fair. If permission is 43 
granted for her to attend the job fair she will ask that business owners who are 44 
looking for employees pay sponsorship fees.  45 
 46 

It was the consensus that Funkhouser shall attend the UW-Stout career fair on March 3 and 47 
4, 2015.   48 
 49 

102



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  November 6, 2014 

- 3 - 

It would be helpful if Funkhouser were more familiar with Quick Books and could utilize 1 
that program to its full potential. She would be willing to enroll in a basic Quick Books 2 
class. She intends to investigate upcoming class schedules at NWTC and will report her 3 
findings at a future meeting. The suggestion was made that Funkhouser also ask the 4 
employees at Kerber Rose if they would be willing to offer some Quick Books training.     5 
 6 
It was the consensus that in 2015: 7 

 The SBAA shall again sponsor the Door County Century Bike Ride, but the amount 8 
of money donated shall be reduced to $2,500. 9 

 $1,000 shall be budgeted to cover expenses related to the Goat Promotional 10 
Campaign. 11 

 $300 shall be budgeted to cover expenses related to the Goat Parade. 12 

 In case sponsor donations don’t cover all expenses related to the Village’s car 13 
show, $500 shall be budgeted to help cover the cost of marketing for that show.  14 

 $3,000 shall be budgeted to cover expenses related to Film Fest. 15 

 $300 shall be budgeted to cover expenses related to the Easter Egg Hunt. 16 

 $30 shall be budgeted to cover expenses related to the “Ice Out Contest”. 17 

 A concerted effort will be made to book “bigger name” acts to perform in the 18 
Performance Pavilion, and corporate and individual sponsorships will be sought for 19 
the concerts they perform at, but $17,000 shall still be budgeted to cover expenses 20 
related to “Park Entertainment”. 21 

 $1,000 shall be budgeted to cover expenses related to the “Coordinator’s 22 
Continuing Education”. 23 

 Sponsorships shall be solicited to cover expenses related to any of the job fairs 24 
Funkhouser attends. 25 

  26 
At 9:30 A.M. Crowell indicated that she had another obligation and left the meeting. 27 
 28 
Bittorf, Bickford, Funkhouser and Gomoll will be working on a draft budget for 2015 and 29 
that document will be presented at the next SBAA Board Meeting. 30 
 31 
Item No. 7. Discussion regarding festivals and special events: 32 
 33 

 Fall Fest Wrap-Up 34 
A Fall Fest Wrap-up Meeting will be conducted at 6:00 P.M. on November 35 
11, 2014. All Sister Bay business owners are encouraged to attend that 36 
meeting. 37 
 38 

 Capture The Spirit 39 
Zacek volunteered to help with “Capture The Spirit”, and she and Funkhouser will 40 
be meeting soon to discuss logistics. 41 

 42 
At 10:20 A.M. Grasse and Zacek indicated that they had another obligation and left the 43 
meeting. 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 

103



Sister Bay Advancement Association Meeting Minutes –  November 6, 2014 

- 4 - 

Item No. 8. Discussion regarding membership: 1 
Item No. 9. Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project update: 2 
Item No. 10. Waterfront Park development update: 3 
It was the consensus that all of these agenda items shall be tabled until the next meeting of 4 
the SBAA Board of Directors. 5 
 6 
Coordinator’s Report: 7 
A copy of the Coordinator’s Report was included in the meeting packets and the Board 8 
members jointly reviewed that document. Funkhouser noted that the Information Booth 9 
has now been closed for the season. For the winter months her office will serve as the 10 
Visitor Center.     11 
 12 
Adjournment: 13 
A motion was made by Hitzeman, seconded by Bickford to adjourn the meeting of the 14 
SBAA Board of Directors at 10:27 A.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 15 
 16 
Respectfully submitted, 17 

 18 
Janal Suppanz, Secretary 19 

104




